f'l’l‘n\\T \
. ‘{ "uL'llj}

S

.- i

Holdlngs Limited
-75 R 2 A



—E-MEEH

Corporate Information

NG <gs

Chairman’s Statement

BV e

Management Discussion and Analysis

B % B

Report of the Directors

R

Corporate Governance Report
(e R 4

Independent Auditors’ Report

i 7 A% S o

Audited Financial Statements

A8 A% A 5

Consolidated:

hRf e

Statement of Profit or Loss

g

Statement of Comprehensive Income

eI E S

Statement of Financial Position

S 5 5K DL AR

Statement of Changes in Equity

Wi 35 5 T 3

Statement of Cash Flows

Bla R

Company:
ST

Statement of Financial Position

LR SINTIE S

Notes to Financial Statements

S 25 e B

EERARRARRARAT

Contents B #

4-7
8-10
11-25
26-39

40-41

42
43
44-45
46

47-48

49

50-132



HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Corporate Information 2 7% %}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director)
TAI Chun Kit — appointed on 1 May 2013

YIP Wai Keung

TSE Siu Wan

LAI Yuk Chuen

CHAN Kay Cheung*

LAN Yee Fong, Steve John*

LUI Shing Ming, Brian*

* Independent non-executive directors

COMPANY SECRETARY
LEUNG Tin Chi

REGISTERED OFFICE

Four Seas eFood Centre
No. 2 Hong Ting Road
Sai Kung

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Mizuho Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank

Chong Hing Bank Limited

KBC Bank N.V.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

P

s ()
SCKFE (H# F A ACPE)

Annual Report 2014

BOER -R_F =470 - HEZE

LR
BER
BiHE B =
Wy
o o W

WL IEBTHEF

2 vl B

PPN )

vk 1 50 55 08
FH

Vi E

R E B 258

VY Er 5 A BE oL

JBe By 38 7 X il g

LA A B A R A ]
HH
B)5RKEH1835%

B 2248

B R R AT

W L SR A R A
BATHRAT () HIRA T
HEESRAT A A FE

B BESRAT A R H
RIEHRAT (FH)HRAH
T8 A2 SRAT AT R A T
e SR AT (BB A R4 7]
W ME B SRAT

A FLRATH A FH

Vo BRI SR AT

o T SRAT (R AR A E]



—E-mEER

SOLICITORS

Mayer Brown JSM

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

WEBSITE

http://www.hongkongfoodinvestment.com.hk

EEARRARRARAT

Corporate Information 2 7& %}

HE i
FELATHAT

B Bt
K A

A4

http://www.hongkongfoodinvestment.com.hk
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H %

RESULTS

I, on behalf of the board of directors, announce that the Group’s
turnover was HK$231,589,000 (2013: HK$386,056,000) for the
year ended 31 March 2014. The profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company was HK$25,293,000 (2013: loss of
HK$23,620,000) while earnings per share was HK9.74 cents (2013:
loss per share HK9.10 cents).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of any

dividend with respect to the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the financial year under review, the Group turned around to
record a profit from last year’s loss. This was mainly attributable
to the improved gross margins from its operations of frozen meats
trading and retail chain of mini department stores. Also, the Group
shared a significant profit after tax from its equity interest in Four
Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (“FSMHL”) which performed
remarkably for the year.
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Always bring you the world’ s superior quality frozen meats
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Frozen Meats Trading

Coping with the persistently weak local demand, softening selling
prices and volatile overseas import supply prices, the Group adopted
a series of measures including stringent purchases and prudent sales
strategies to reduce market risks. Also, the Group strived for reducing
inventories on hand through exercising flexible selling prices which
successfully controlled the inventories to a prudent level and largely
lowered the cold storage costs and in turn improved the gross margin.
Sales for the year was HK$187,284,000 (2013: HK$359,627,000).
Despite the impact from reduced sales, the Group’s segmental
performance in frozen meats trading was significantly improved
comparing to last year as a result of implemented measures to reduce

operating costs.
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Chairman’s Statement XEHE

Retail Chain of Mini Department Stores

Operation of retail chain of mini department stores in Mainland China
developed satisfactorily. At the end of the year, the Group had a total
of 6 stores in operation which are located in modern and large multi-
purpose shopping malls with potential of high customer flow. At the
present time, the Group’s network of stores covers Guangzhou City
and Foshan City. Commencing from the third quarter of the financial
year, the Group increased the unit selling price. Coupled with the
depreciation of Japanese Yen since the third quarter of this financial
year which benefited the Group in lowering the purchase costs of Yen-
based imported products, gross margin improved for the year. Sales for
the year amounted to HK$44,305,000 (2013: HK$26,429,000).

Food Business Investment

As at 31 March 2014, the Group maintained its equity interest in
FSMHL at approximately 29.70%. Capitalising on manufacturing
at its own food factories and long-established extensive distribution
network for many exclusively distributed worldwide famous brands
and proprietary brands, it provides competitive synergies for FSMHL
to drive its business growth. Furthermore, its prudent cost control
measures, coupled with cheaper Yen-based imported products as
a result of Yen depreciation, boosted the profit of FSMHL to a
historical record level. As a result, the Group’s share of profit after tax
substantially increased to HK$47,568,000 (2013: HK$32,874,000).

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to operate prudently
and adopt stringent cost control measures to consolidate its frozen
meats trading business. Also, the Group will carefully select suitable
locations in Mainland China to further develop its mini department
stores business. Besides, it is expected that Mainland China with a
population of 1.3 billion will provide enormous business opportunities
for FSMHL to further drive its business growth, as currently
approximately 66% of turnover of FSMHL was generated from Hong
Kong with over 7 million people. As FSMHL will commit to develop
with full effort its business in Mainland China to build a snack food
conglomerate there, it is expected that investment in FSMHL will

continue to contribute sustainable earnings growth to the Group.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of directors, I would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and our business partners for their
support and trust to the management team. My gratitude also extends
to our staff for their loyalty and diligence in the developments of the

business of the Group.

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBS, SBS, JP

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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For the year, the Group’s turnover of frozen meats trading and
retail mini department stores amounted to HK$231,589,000 (2013:
HK$386,056,000). Turnover of retail mini department stores grew
steadily attributable to enlarged outlets, whilst turnover of frozen
meats trading decreased as a result of prudent sales strategy to reduce
market risks. Attributable to effectively implemented cost control
measures to reduce cold storage charges for frozen meats trading,
as well as cheaper cost of Yen-based consumer products of mini
department stores benefited by Japanese Yen depreciation, the Group’s
overall gross margins recorded at 10.6% for the year comparing to

gross margin loss in previous year.

Frozen Meats Trading

Turnover of frozen meats trading for the year recorded
HK$187,284,000 (2013: HK$359,627,000), accounting for
approximately 81% (2013: approximately 93%) of Group’s total
turnover. During the year, overseas import prices were volatile,
whilst local selling prices were weak. Therefore, the Group adopted
stringent purchasing and prudent selling strategies to reduce on hand
inventories. As at the end of the financial year, inventory level was
maintained at HK$32,434,000 (2013: HK$64,245,000). The effective
control measures on inventory helped to largely reduce cold storage
costs and hence improved gross margin. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on controlling inventory level and operating costs so

as to achieve a steady growth of this business.

Retail Chain of Mini Department Stores

Focusing on selecting modernised and multi-purpose shopping malls
with high customer flow, the Group opened new stores by phases
during the year. At the end of the financial year, the Group operated a
total of 6 stores, covering Guangzhou City and Foshan City. Sales for
the year amounted to HK$44,305,000 (2013: HK$26,429,000), sharing
approximately 19% (2013: approximately 7%) of the Group’s total
turnover. Benefited by upward unit price adjustment in the middle of
financial year and depreciation of Japanese Yen on lowering product
costs, profit margin was enhanced which provided a favorable position
for steady business development in the future. Going forward, the
Group will diligently select suitable store locations to further expand

this segment business.
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Food Business Investment

As at 31 March 2014, the Group held equity interest in FSMHL
at approximately 29.70%. FSMHL achieved a remarkable result
for the year, of which the Group’s share of earnings increased
substantially to HK$47,568,000. Despite market competition in food
business remained stiff, FSMHL sustained sizable market share and
substantially increased in profit mainly attributable to purchasing
cost reduction, demonstrating its unique business strategies of the

management.

Based in Hong Kong since 1971, FSMHL has developed from initially
engaging in food distribution to present one of the largest food
enterprises after consistent efforts in the past 43 years, a conglomerate
offering food manufacturing, distribution, retailing and catering
businesses.

Currently, FSMHL manufactures and distributes a wide range of food
products, serving customer groups of different ages and segments,
including milk powder, snacks, health foods, wine, beverages, sauce,
seasonings, ham and sausages and etc. Its comprehensive distribution
network comprises supermarkets, convenience store chains,
department stores, fast food chains, wholesalers, retailers, restaurants,
hotels, bars and airlines. In Hong Kong, FSMHL operates over 90
chain stores, including “Okashi Land” specialty stores with about
60 outlets and the newly-introduced premium Japanese cookie store
“YOKU MOKU”.

FSMHL has a total of 20 food manufacturing plants in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, receiving numerous accreditation from relevant
international institutions including “GMP”, “HACCP”, “ISO 9001”,
“ISO 22000 and “Hong Kong Q-mark Product Scheme Certification”.
All food products from these plants have been highly regarded and
gained a vote of trust and confidence in the market. Moreover, the
production-sales integration model has provided high flexibility for

FSMHL to serve different tastes in different segment markets.

Catering business of FSMHL continued to perform satisfactorily for
the year. Restaurants and fast food shops operated in Hong Kong
include Japanese-style “Restaurant Shiki”, Shanghai vegetarian cuisine
“Kung Tak Lam”, Japanese dumpling “Osaka Ohsho”. Operated
in Mainland China, there include garden-style Chinese restaurant
“Panxi Restaurant”, sushi restaurant chain “Sushi Oh” and light meal
cafe “Mori Café”. With perfect ambience and superior management,
FSMHL has developed strong brand equity and created a new trend of

food and catering business in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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“Catering for Hong Kong’s needs while contributing to the country”
is the future development strategy of FSMHL. In pursuing its market
share in local food industry, FSMHL is also committed to build a food
and snacks kingdom in Mainland China and has already set its priority
in Guangdong Province with over 100 million population as a base to
gradually increase its share in the country. FSMHL is now undergoing
a series of employee training and actively participating in large-
scale local and international food fair events, stepping up its presence
in Pearl River Delta and extending into different Mainland cities.
With the newly adopted “selective two-child policy” in Mainland
China, it is expected that the demand of baby milk powder will surge
substantially. FSMHL has already entered into Mainland milk powder
market, using Guangdong Province as a testing ground to expand its
retail network. Seizing the rapid development opportunity of Eastern
Guangdong, FSMHL will build a Four Seas Food Wholesale Centre
in Shantou to induce wholesalers in Guangdong Province to purchase
Four Seas brand products there in order to develop a sustainable
business model.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities granted by its principal bankers. As at
31 March 2014, the Group had banking facilities of HK$371,000,000,
of which 40% had been utilised. The Group had a gearing ratio
of 35% as at 31 March 2014. This is expressed as the total bank
borrowings to equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.
Bank borrowings of the Group, denominated in Hong Kong dollars, are
mainly short term loans and trust receipt loans (the “Interest-bearing
Bank Borrowings™) at prevailing market interest rates. The Interest-
bearing Bank Borrowings which are classified as current liabilities are
repayable within one year. As at 31 March 2014, the Group held cash
and cash equivalents of HK$42,332,000. There were no significant
changes in the Group’s contingent liabilities and no charges on the

Group’s assets as at the end of the reporting period.

Staff Employment

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 March 2014 was
170. Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to
market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are
normally reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 42 to 132.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in

respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited

financial statements, is set out below:
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RN R -=E R St R -RE
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(continued)
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A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited

financial statements, is set out below: (continued)

As at 31 March

R=H=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RN —ER-ZEE R R4 ZEFE

HK$’000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

Vi e BT BT BT BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ & J fi {4
TOTAL ASSETS B 601,975 631,918 720,956 668,682 605,827
TOTAL LIABILITIES B E (174,489) (226,702) (296,237) (195,897) (124,596)

427,486 405,216 424,719 472,785 481,231

The information set out above does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the

Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year

are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 28(b) to the financial statements and

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 48 of Schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to
HK$45,844,000.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the end of the reporting

period are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director)
TAI Chun Kit — appointed on 1 May 2013

YIP Wai Keung

TSE Siu Wan

LAI Yuk Chuen

Independent non-executive directors:

CHAN Kay Cheung
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John
LUI Shing Ming, Brian

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, Mr. Tse Siu Wan and Mr.
Lai Yuk Chuen will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Lai Yuk Chuen will not offer himself for re-election in the
forthcoming annual meeting due to his retirement. The other retiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Lai Yuk Chuen has confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and there are no matters in
relation to his retirement that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

Also, Mr. Yip Wai Keung will retire as director of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting due to his retirement.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Lan Yee Fong, Steve
John and Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
and the Company is of the view that all independent non-executive

directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneration is determined by the Board with reference
to directors’ involvement in the Company’s affairs, experience,
responsibilities and the prevailing market level of remuneration of
executives of similar positions, and reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Group. Details of remuneration of the directors are
set out in note 8§ to the financial statements. Particulars of the duties
and responsibilities of the remuneration committee are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) as set

out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)
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o % B de AT BON HUR AR 2 i) B4R
o 1 VB 5 1B DB B B A W DBt A 22 i 2
B, SRR (H)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company T AR 2 ) 3 BBy 2 A
Number of ordinary shares held
P 5 3 BBy 2 B H
Personal Corporate Approximate
interests interests percentage of
(held as (interests of the Company’s
beneficial controlled Total issued
owner) corporation) interests share capital
2 v il 2 fliAs 2 ") B8 4T
il A\ B 2 (FEH 2+ JBe A 2 BE £
Name of directors WM (H#EFH) ZHigR) HE 23 451 "k
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen ik 6,730,000 84,009,177% 90,739,177 34.95%
YIP Wai Keung YERETR 736,360 - 736,360 0.28%
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 800,000 - 800,000 0.31%
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [t yi) 800,000 - 800,000 0.31%
Notes: Mt

(i)  Such shares comprise:

(a)

(b)

30,914,000 shares, representing 11.91% of the Company’s issued
share capital, are owned by Careful Guide Limited (“CGL”) which
is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen. Therefore, his
spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, is deemed to be interested in the
30,914,000 shares in CGL;

52,907,250 shares, representing 20.38% of the Company’s issued
share capital, are owned by Special Access Limited (“SAL”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his
spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly. Accordingly, Mr. Tai Tak Fung,
Stephen and Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, are deemed to be interested
in the 52,907,250 shares held by SAL; and

187,927 shares, representing 0.072% of the Company’s issued share
capital, are beneficially owned by Four Seas Mercantile Holdings
Limited (“FSMHL”). CGL and SAL, whose beneficial owners are
set out under Notes (i)(a) and (i)(b) above, in aggregate hold more
than one-third of the issued share capital of FSMHL. Accordingly,
Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung,
Quinly, are deemed to be interested in the 187,927 shares held by
FSMHL.

O EEB AL

BE5530,914,000B B4y » AGASA W] CEATIRARZ
11.91% > J3 HiCareful Guide Limited ([ CGL )
B CGLAIMBMEYEE2ERE - K
Mo HFETWHER L P B BER FECGLZ
30,914,000/ By Z HE#5 5

(a)

I64852,907, 250 B An » A AR A F BT IR AR Z
20.38% > J3 HiSpecial Access Limited ([SALJ)
A > SALHAI g s W A RO E T KA &
T EEHEA - Hb > MEY A R FTETHIE
BA Wk WA SALIT R H 252,907,250 )8 I
2t s K

(b)

e 187,927 B A » A AR AR BT RAZ
0.072% > J5 1 19 9 45 [ A B2 =] (T g o 42 4 )
HIWA - MCGLMXSAL (LB 35 ¥ A A #
B SCHEREG) () K G) (b)) B AR U A EE =
S —Z CBATIREA o Ik > R e R 3
THERAL LB ABEUNER I HEZ
187,927/ e iy Z M 2
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation

Directors’ interest in the equity of FSMHL as an associated
corporation are as follows:
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Number of ordinary shares held

P 5 35 8 BBy 2 W H
Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage of
interests interests such associated
(held as (interests of corporation’s
beneficial controlled Total issued
owner) corporation) interests share capital
Ak E AV H B 2
8 A HE 2 (P A AT B
Name of directors W AR (B f) ZHE2R) HE 23 2451 ZHAE Sk
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen L - 259,478,0000 259,478,000 66.89%
YIP Wai Keung BE {5 R 680,000 - 680,000 0.17%
Notes: Mt
(i)  Such shares comprise: (1) ZEBRMEE:

(a) 70,000,000 shares, representing 18.05% of the issued share capital
of FSMHL, are held by CGL which is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak
Fung, Stephen. Therefore, his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly, is
deemed to be interested in the 70,000,000 shares in CGL;

(b) 74,250,000 shares, representing 19.14% of the issued share capital
of FSMHL, are owned by SAL, a company wholly owned by Mr.
Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, and his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly.
Accordingly, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and Ms. Wu Mei Yung,
Quinly are deemed to be interested in the 74,250,000 shares held by
SAL; and

(c) 115,228,000 shares, representing 29.70% of the issued share capital
of FSMHL, are owned by Capital Season Investments Limited, a
company wholly owned by Advance Finance Investments Limited
(“AFIL”). Since AFIL is wholly owned by the Company, which
in turn Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, SAL, CGL and FSMHL in
aggregate hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of
the Company, and therefore, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, and his
spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly are deemed to have interests in
the 115,228,000 shares of FSMHL.

(a)  BE%E70,000,000/8E B4 > A% PO o4 B B AT IR AR
Z18.05% > J3 HICGLFF A » M CGLA Hy 5 78 W
S 2 EHEA - B > T T WAL LR
J BEA AECGLZ 70,000,000/ B4 2 HE 25 5

(b)  BEEE74,250,000/8 Bt 4 » 4 PO o 4R AT
AR 2Z19.14% > T3 HISALFEH > MiSALH Hy # 7
WA RHLETHERL 2GR o B
WA e A R LW SR L R B A
SAL Fi#4 274,250,000 By 2 HE2E 5 MK

(c)  Bb%E115,228,000/% Mz 4 - A 70 90 48 1 2 9% 47 1Bt
A 2Z229.70% » )5 HCapital Season Investments
Limitedff ¥ f7 > MMiCapital Season Investments
LimitedH] 1 Advance Finance Investments
Limited ([ AFIL |) 2 ¥ 8 H o MR AFILTI A 4
m2REHEA » MAAF A FHEZ 4 — 2 BT
JB AR 43 31 v 9 M S8 A~ SAL ~ CGL K Y o 42
BlFA o R > BB E R REFHIRAL
b AR 2 B A A 7 W 45 1 2 115,228,000)8 JBE Ay
ZHERS o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation

(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) has been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe
for shares of the Company and associated corporation required to be
disclosed pursuant to SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2014, the following parties (other than the directors

and chief executive of the Company, whose interests have been

disclosed above) had interests of 5% or more in the shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company

Annual Report 2014

A2 TR R 5 ) B R SR 336k Z MU P2 B 2
ik > R-F-NE=ZA=+—H: KL
SC T 5 8 JLE A 2 A R R AT BN B A
VLR AL B AR AR S%E L LRy Z RS -

T AR 2 i 3 OB B Oy 2 % AT

Number of ordinary shares held

O 5 V5 T 0B Sty 2 W H
Direct/

personal Corporate Approximate
interests Family interests percentage of
(held as interests (interests of the Company’s
beneficial (interests of controlled Total issued
owner) spouse) corporation) interests  share capital
Hik/ 2 Joi i 2 il A2+
Name of substantial PN £ (e 15 (€3 P CEITRARZ
shareholders FEBORSH (ERHH) ZHER) ZHiR) E 2 BT BEE 2 e
SAL 52,907,250% - - 52,907,250 20.38%
CGL 30,914,000 - - 30,914,000 11.91%
WU Mei Yung, Quinly HRA - 37,644,00000  53,095,177% 90,739,177 34.95%

Notes: /A

®

(iD)

SAL is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and his spouse,
Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly. This interest is also included as a corporate
interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and described in Note (i)(b) in the
above section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any
associated corporation” under “Long positions in the ordinary shares of

the Company”.

CGL is wholly owned by Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen. This interest is
also included as a corporate interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and
described in Note (i)(a) in the above section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any associated corporation” under “Long

positions in ordinary shares of the Company”.

() SALT HEEENE A R EETHRE L L2 EHA
ZAT o BURERR O A Y B G (b) 3 2 i W AT B
N BT A O T A o R T 5 T JBE A B A R P Ay 2
i K SR AT | 43 Be e IR A2 W) 0% 38 M e Ay 2 %
—JE T D R A B A S A R 2 A AR o

(i) CGLIMMIEML AT HA - WD C 6557 H
RE() (a) [ 3¢ BB W47 BON B A 2 ) gl A ) AT DB 3%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii) Out of the 37,644,000 shares, 6,730,000 shares (representing 2.59% of
the issued share capital of the Company) are beneficially held by Mr. Tai
Tak Fung, Stephen. Therefore, his spouse, Ms. Wu Mei Yung, Quinly,
is deemed to have an interest therein. This interest is also included as
a personal interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen in the above section
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any associated
corporation”. The remaining 30,914,000 shares, representing 11.91% of
the issued share capital of the Company, are owned by CGL. This interest
is also included as a corporate interest of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and
described in Note (i)(a) in the above section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any associated corporation” under “Long
positions in ordinary shares of the Company”.

(iv) Out of the 53,095,177 shares, 187,927 shares (representing 0.072% of
the Company’s issued share capital) are beneficially owned by FSMHL.
The remaining 52,907,250 shares, representing 20.38% of the Company’s
issued share capital, are owned by SAL. These interests are also included
as corporate interests of Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and described in
Note (i)(b) and (c) in the above section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any associated corporation” under “Long
positions in the ordinary shares of the Company”.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the directors of the
Company, as at 31 March 2014, no persons (other than the directors
and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
above section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and/or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any associated corporation”) had interests and/or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

There was no outstanding share option at the beginning and at the end
of the year. During the year ended 31 March 2014, no share option had
been granted under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 28 August 2012 (the “Scheme”). Details of the Scheme are set out

in note 27 to the financial statements.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Dr. TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBS, SBS, JP, PhD (honoris causa),
aged 66, has been an executive director of the Company since May
1997. Dr. Tai is the chairman of the Group, in charge of corporate and
policy planning. Apart from being awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star and
Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, Dr. Tai has also been appointed as Justice of
the Peace. He holds the Visiting Professor of South China Normal
University and South China Agricultural University, member of the
Board of Trustees of Jinan University. He is a Standing Committee
Member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) and a Standing Committee
Member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of the CPPCC.
Dr. Tai holds several public positions, including the president of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the president of Hong Kong
Japan Confectionery, Biscuit & Foodstuffs Association, the president
of Friends of Hong Kong Association, the founding chairman of the
Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, the chairman
of the Hong Kong Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors, and
Economic Adviser of Jilin City. He received a number of awards
and accolades, including the Worldwide Prominent Chiu Chow
Business Leader Award 2012-2013, the World Outstanding Chinese
Award, the Philanthropist Award of the Grand Charity Ceremony
2011, the 30th Food Industry Distinguished Service Award, the
Award of the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries of
Japan for the Overseas Promotion of Japanese Food, the Outstanding
Contribution Award of the China National Food Industry, the
China Food Safety Annual Conference Award of Distinguished
Management Entrepreneur, the Social Responsibility Contribution
Award, “Honourable Citizen of Shantou City”, “Honourable Citizen of
Guangzhou City” and “Honourable Citizen of Jilin City” in Mainland
China. He is also the founder, chairman and executive director of
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (“FSMHL”), an associated
corporation of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and a director of Careful Guide
Limited and Special Access Limited, both of which are the substantial
shareholders of the Company. Dr. Tai is the father of Mr. Tai Chun Kit
who has been appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 May 2013.

Annual Report 2014

o S ma A BN BB A

AT HE R

WAL GBS SBS K-F#fd: > 208 T 45 B 1
45 66% > B —JUJL-LAEH A AR A A B BUAT
W o MWL R AREEZ R » EELERBORH
) o 8 B 8 A VB A 0 AT OB I BT % T A o B R R
TRBERFIRE - KOPA L > W IRp 2 3 R R AR 5
KEEMBERERELT BHREKRE - FEA
BB b e 2 B % B R B & B b BN B
WA REREZEGWHEZESN > WHELS M
HEAR > BEFERNETTR - B HEROE
TEMERERNGTR - FHAHHETER - B
AR MZBFHEG T LR - BB ALY
F2 i Be 5 AR AR R R o A SN SR IR AR >
$52012-2013 4 BR A ] 7 4 A 2E -t R 38 A
2011 « AR EBRMEEEZND 5 -
HAE =& w555~ HARBUR B bRk B
KREHE - R fr i TG SRR - PRI LR
FEEFEFHEACER - MG HEEREE - PR
TRBTR - MANTRETREERTRBTR -
WL UM EEARAR (THMWER] 2
AN~ EWIRBATES » Z A A R AR Z B
B > R AT AL B EMR BT o B8 R Careful
Guide Limited&Special Access LimitedZ # ¥ > it
W TH A R 3 B A A W) 2 BB EOR o S R o4
M - WG RER =4I — B
ZBERARA R ZHITESF -



—E-MEEH

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis, aged 58, has been an executive
director of the Company since July 1995. Mr. Man is the managing
director of the Group, responsible for the overall management
planning and control. Mr. Man has a Master of Commerce degree
from the University of New South Wales in Australia. He is also a
member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has gained extensive experience in finance and
accounting from overseas multinational corporations. Mr. Man joined
the Group in 1992. He is also an executive director of FSMHL.

Mr. TAI Chun Kit, aged 31, has been an executive director of the
Company since May 2013. Mr. Tai is responsible for new businesses
planning and development of the Group including the business
development of “Daiso Living Department Store” in Mainland
China. Mr. Tai holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Hons) degree. He has extensive experience in retail management,
brands development and marketing planning. He joined FSMHL,
an associated corporation of the Group, in 2004 and has been the
general manager of Fancy Talent Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
engaging in the retail business of FSMHL, since 2007. He joined the
Group in 2012. He is a son of Dr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen, who is the
chairman and an executive director of the Company.

Mr. YIP Wai Keung, aged 64, has been an executive director of
the Company since May 1997. Mr. Yip is responsible for business
development of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yip was
responsible for the sales and marketing activities in a Japanese food
company in Hong Kong. He has more than 30 years’ experience in the
sales development. Mr. Yip joined the Group in 1997. He is also an
executive director of FSMHL.

Mr. TSE Siu Wan, aged 53, has been an executive director of the
Company since August 1992. Mr. Tse is responsible for the food
quality control of the Group. He has extensive experience in food
manufacturing and factory production management. Mr. Tse joined the
Group in 1980. He is also a director and the general manager of Hong
Kong Ham Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FSMHL.

Mr. LAI Yuk Chuen, aged 60, has been an executive director of the
Company since July 1995. Mr. Lai is responsible for the strategic sales
and marketing of the Group. He has extensive experience in trading

and marketing. Mr. Lai joined the Group in 1984.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kay Cheung, aged 67, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 1995. He is a
senior adviser of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, the vice chairman
of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and the chairman of
Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. He possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr. Chan is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member
of the Process Review Committee for the oversight of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, a member of the Clearing and Settlement
Systems Appeals Tribunal, a member of the Committee of Overseers
of Lee Woo Sing College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
member of The China Unionpay International Advisory Group and an
international senior economic consultant of The People’s Government
of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive
director of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited,
Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company Limited, Dah
Chong Hong Holdings Limited and SOCAM Development Limited,
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. LAN Yee Fong, Steve John, aged 73, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January 1998. He was
the chairman of Evergreen Consultants Limited, president of Inswire
Insurance Limited and chairman of Zurich Financial Services Group,
Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lan is the chairman of The Hong Kong
Tuberculosis, Chest and Heart Diseases Association, the chairman of
the Hospital Governing Committee of Grantham Hospital, a member
of the Hospital Governing Committee of Ruttonjee Hospital and Tang
Shiu Kin Hospital, and a member of the management committee of
Freni Care and Attention Home. He is a graduate of The University
of Hong Kong and a fellow of The Chartered Insurance Institute. Mr.
Lan has extensive experience in the insurance industry with intensive

involvement in corporate development.

Mr. LUI Shing Ming, Brian, aged 53, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Lui
is currently the chairman of Cheong Ming Investments Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lui
holds a Master Degree in Commerce from the University of New South
Wales, Australia. He is a fellow member of both the CPA Australia
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management

Mr. LEUNG Tin Chi, aged 50, is the financial controller and
company secretary, responsible for finance, accounting and company
secretarial affairs. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor of Business degree
from Swinburne University of Technology in Australia. He is also a
member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has extensive accounting experience.
He joined the Group in 1994.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 90%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest

supplier included therein amounted to 39%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial

interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed

or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with

the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following continuing connected transactions are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.34 of
the Listing Rules, and the respective amounts have not exceeded the
relevant annual cap approved by the Stock Exchange as disclosed in
the announcement dated 6 August 2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Purchases of pre-packed food and beverage products

On 6 August 2012, the Company entered into a Master Supply
Agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) with an associate,
FSMHL, for purchases of pre-packed food and beverage products
manufactured by FSMHL and/or its subsidiaries for a term
commencing from the date of the Master Supply Agreement until
31 March 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the amount paid by the Group
to FSMHL and/or its subsidiaries for the purchases of pre-packed
food and beverage products was approximately HK$4,464,000 (2013:
HK$3,113,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions in relation to the
purchases of pre-packed food and beverage products set out above
and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available from independent suppliers; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee comprises
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The summary of duties and work of the audit committee is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen, GBS, SBS, JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ EERE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Annual Report™).

The Company’s corporate governance policies and practices are
applied and implemented in the manners as stated in the below
Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the management are committed to maintain
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders.
The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential
to a continual growth and enhancement of shareholders’ value. The
Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest development of corporate governance.
Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with most of the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules with the exception of code provisions A.4.1
and A.4.2 of the CG Code, details will be set out below.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The role of the Board is to set up strategic goals, performance
objectives and operational policies; establish a framework of prudent
and effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and managed;
delegate authorities to the management to manage and supervise
the business of the Group; and ensure the management monitor

performance against objectives being set.

The Company has formalised a written guideline for the division
of responsibilities between the Board and the management. Certain
responsibilities or functions have been delegated by the Board to the
management which include the day-to-day business operation of the
Group, execution of corporate strategies, business and financial plans
and budgets approved by the Board and preparation of annual and
interim financial statements. The Board has reserved for its decisions
matters of the Group covering the approval of significant changes in
accounting or capital structure; approval of public announcements
and the financial statements; approval of major acquisitions, disposals
and major capital projects; approval of material borrowings and any
issuing or buying back of equity securities; approval of the annual
budget and setting of the dividend policy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) HHEG(H)
Board Composition WM
The Board of the Company comprises 9 directors consisting of 6 RAFZHEEG ML EFMR > Hrhe ABAiTH
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors. B3 B LIERITESE -
The following chart shows the structure and membership of the Board N _FE—NE=HA=1+—H EFEZGREEREE
and Board’s Committees as at 31 March 2014: ZHMERE BB TE
Board of Directors
W H
Executive directors
HIir#EF
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)
W (FEE)
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director)
SCIKFE (A PE)
TAI Chun Kit*
g
YIP Wai Keung
B {5t
TSE Siu Wan
o E
LAI Yuk Chuen
RER
Independent non-executive directors
BB AT # T
CHAI! Kay Cheung Company Secretary
PRIk AR
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John . .
R LEUNG Tin Chi
LUI Shing Ming, Brian BRI
Cad
Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
HBEHE FMEHS RAZRG
CHAN Kay Cheung (Chairman) LAN Yee Fong, Steve John (Chairman) TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman)
BRBLE (L) BRI (LH) WIEY ()
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John TAI Tak Fung, Stephen MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis
[ -p) W SCAR A
LUI Shing Ming, Brian MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis CHAN Kay Cheung
il SCKFE AR B
CHAN Kay Cheung LAN Yee Fong, Steve John
AL B BRI
LUI Shing Ming, Brian LUI Shing Ming, Brian
15 W) s 0
*  Mr. Tai Chun Kit has been appointed as an executive director of the o ORZEB-ZHEAH—H BERRECERT AR

Company on 1 May 2013.

ATPATES -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

Biographical information of the directors and relevant relationships
among the directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” in the Report of the Directors of
this Annual Report.

Board Meeting
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss and
formulate overall strategies for the Company, monitor financial
performance and discuss the interim and annual results, as well as

other significant matters.

The Board has convened four regular meetings during the year ended
31 March 2014 and the attendance record of each director at the said

board meetings and the annual general meeting of the Company is set
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out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
M BT K
Regular Annual
Board Meeting General Meeting
Name of directors W HH W a® JBe SO AE R &
Executive directors HAIFHEF
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman) W (E) 4/4 /1
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis (Managing Director) — 3Cik ¥ (# F 445 PH) 4/4 1/1
TAI Chun Kit e B 4/4 1/1
YIP Wai Keung T 4/4 1/1
TSE Siu Wan Ay E 4/4 /1
LAI Yuk Chuen BRER 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive directors VS i
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL & 4/4 /1
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John BEFTT 4/4 1/1
LUI Shing Ming, Brian G Ll 4/4 1/1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting (continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for
other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served in
accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms
of reference.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors or committee members at least
3 days before each Board meeting and each committee meeting
to keep the directors or committee members apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All directors are encouraged to take
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, upon the
performance of their duties as and when deemed necessary. The Board
and each director have separate and independent access to the senior

management where necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and final

version is open for directors’ inspection.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in
a matter to be considered material by the Board, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up to deal

with the matter.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

The Board is empowered under the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional member of the Board. Appointments are first
considered by the Nomination Committee and recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the Board for decision. Details
in respect of the process and criteria for the Nomination Committee to
select and recommend candidates for directorship are provided in the

section headed “Nomination Committee”.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election (continued)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation for re-election by
shareholders at annual general meeting, such that every director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, all
independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association. As such, the Board considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Under the code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment. Every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. In accordance with the
Articles of Association, any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election. The Board considers that
such a deviation is not material as casual vacancy seldom appears and
interval between the appointment made to fill casual vacancy and the
immediate following annual general meeting is short.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

All directors have complied with the code provision in relation to
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. From time to time during the year under review,
relevant reading materials on corporate governance, regulatory
developments and changes of accounting standards or other topics
relevant to the Company’s business and director’s duties and
responsibilities have been given to the directors of the Company. In
addition, some directors have been provided with in-house training
and attended seminars and workshops which are relevant to their work
and responsibilities so as to update their technical knowledge and

professional skills during the year ended 31 March 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Participation by individual directors in continuous professional

development during the year under review is summarised below:

#Ag (5
0 2 SRR ()

TP T R4 JBE T 22 LA A0 T S 0 e I )
A

Types of training

Name of directors HEHLW B g%
Executive directors HIrHH

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen A B, C
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis SR A, B, C
TAI Chun Kit HOERBE B, C
YIP Wai Keung EC L B, C
TSE Siu Wan #HAE A,B,C
LAI Yuk Chuen BRER A,B,C
Independent non-executive directors BT

CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B A, C
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [y A, C
LUI Shing Ming, Brian s A, C

A — Attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums
B — Attending in-house training sessions

C — Reading updates on relevant topics

Chairman and Managing Director

Currently, Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen and Mr. Man Wing Cheung,
Ellis hold the positions of Chairman and Managing Director
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and

set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of the
executive directors and senior management, the Managing Director
is responsible for managing the Group’s business, including
implementation of objectives, policies and major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board. He is also in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day operation in accordance with the instructions

from the Board.

A - W Rk
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 independent non-executive directors, representing one-
third of the Board, with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and
3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received a written
annual confirmation from each independent non-executive director
in respect of his independence and the Company is of the view that
all the existing independent non-executive directors are independent
under the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules up to the date of this Annual Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which are available to shareholders upon request.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are also available for
viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms
of reference and all of its members are independent non-executive
directors, one of them possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman of Audit
Committee), Mr. Lan Yee Fong, Steve John and Mr. Lui Shing Ming,
Brian.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group, to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and financial reporting, to maintain an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s auditors, and to oversee the audit
process.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2014 to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discuss internal controls and financial reporting
matters including a review of the interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2013 and the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 of the Company. The
Audit Committee has also reviewed the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2014 of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

The attendance records of the Audit Committee during the year are set
out below:

HREHE ()
ARA B % B AR L 2 B T

Number of meetings attended/held

Name of committee members ZEARABAR W BT Rk B
CHAN Kay Cheung (Chairman of Audit Committee) BB (FEZA T ) 2/2
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [:5F i) 2/2
LUI Shing Ming, Brian M 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMER®

The Remuneration Committee was established with specific written
terms of references and is currently constituted by 3 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Lan Yee Fong, Steve John (Chairman
of Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Lui
Shing Ming, Brian and 2 executive directors, namely Mr. Tai Tak
Fung, Stephen and Mr. Man Wing Cheung, Ellis.

The Company has adopted the model where the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of all directors and senior management and the
remuneration packages of individual directors and senior management
of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has convened one meeting during
the year to review, inter alia, the Group’s remuneration policy and
structure, the remuneration packages of all directors and senior
management by reference to the individuals’ performance, skills and
knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities, and performance
and profitability of the Group; and the service contracts of the
directors for the year under review. Details of the emoluments of
each director of the Company are set out in note 8 to the financial

statements.

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee during the

year are set out below:

W& B O RSB or 3 DL TR B R TR
B o Bl H A3 M AT R RS
(FrZ B 30) ~ BRALE S ok I W) S A 5L
24 AT HE A e A e SO R S A AL -

A 0N W PR A I 2 B 1 o R AT 2
e A BN B T AL R R A A o
T2 B 2 3 SRR AR A B T A e AR
BN H 2 I 4 2 BOSK S 2R > DA KA ol 3 = % v A
RN B Z MG ALG - 1 1

i1 25 By A o] AR B P9 8 B — ek > B (B
w0 ) AR G5 I 2 S T BOR  2RE > DA R 2 7%
B~ BCRR TR ~ BT BRI R B AT B % AC AR
EACRBIEBANGE D » FHEWEFRHAEHA
HZ M4 5 DR o AR N 2 R IR B A 4 - A
0N ) A5 T o 2 T A B A M S

AAE EEH N Z B G R Z R sk T

Number of meetings attended/held

Name of committee members ZEFRBAR W BT R B
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [:5F i)

(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FFZ B & L 5) 1/1
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen g 1/1
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis SO 1/1
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 1/1
LUI Shing Ming, Brian Gt 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration of the member

of the senior management, not being the directors of the Company, by

band is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

it WAL (s )
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HREHE ()
L ESACT

BEZF-NE=ZA=+— HILFEIRERA L
ERERZHAEBANB ZHALR W ¢

Number of Persons

A%

Nil to 1,000,000

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in

notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference and currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely Mr. Tai Tak Fung, Stephen (Chairman of Nomination
Committee) and Mr. Man Wing Cheung, Ellis, and 3 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Lan Yee Fong,
Steve John and Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring
the appointment and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The Nomination
Committee will also identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships when there
are vacancies on the Board. All appointments will be made based
on merits and against objective criteria with due regard to the Board
diversity policy of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has convened one meeting during the
year to review, inter alia, the Board’s structure, size and composition
to ensure that it had a balance of expertise, skills and experience

appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The attendance records of the Nomination Committee during the year

are set out below:

HREHE ()
BAE UG (H)

AFEERATHE T Z WS T ¢

Number of meetings attended/held

Name of committee members ZEHAHRABAR BT MWK Y
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen WEy

(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (125 ZHFEN) 1/1
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis SCK 1/1
CHAN Kay Cheung BRAHL S 1/1
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [ :Y:1 1/1
LUI Shing Ming, Brian B W 1/1
Summary of the Board Diversity Policy WY R B 2 oc b BOR MR

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. On 23
August 2013, the Company adopted a Board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board of the Company. Under the Policy, the Nomination Committee
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in reviewing and
assessing the Board composition. The Nomination Committee has
assessed the composition of the Board against these aspects and has
come to the conclusion that it is a balanced board of directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

For corporate governance, the Board is responsible for performing the

functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors of the Company
(the “Code of Conduct”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors
of the Company, the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Code of
Conduct throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company has also established the Code for Securities Transaction
by the Relevant Employees (the “Employees Code”) on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by the
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Code
by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 March 2014.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014, appropriate accounting principles and policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are
appropriate and reasonable; and these financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis.

The senior management of the Company provides the Board with
such information and explanations as are necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial

information and position, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Board is also responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of both annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors, Messrs. Ernst
& Young (“EY”), are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this Annual Report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

Annual Report 2014

it 77 28 o B e <

A2 TSR A B U 2 A O AT R R
S A BRI (TR o A FAAT 2
BT A S A > R > SRR E
B S A S LRI R
BT L 2 28 5 e o

A0 W AR AT RE B AS A R AT B 2 A B R B
AT AN T v 27 28 B A R s ) 2 Ak T 2 A e O
AT RZ ST (RESA]) o AT A
RBEZF-WEZH=Z1—HILFEERN - I R
BARA AT IR B 7 I Z DL -

) 5 B 7 B
A5

EHRNBREAAEHRERAATEE T —4F
ZHAEHIRFEEZ MBS Z BT - R
BEEF-WEZHA =1 HIRE S Z B R
388 45 % T THIOME P O U0 B BBOSRE 5 PR AR 2 M)
B B Al R B b R B B 5 W R4 R S O DR
BB IR -

Ay T Z e AR A BN B 1k e 0 T R
B HEDRDABEA B IR EH DR EHR Z AR
S50 785 S ek AR L AR S A R A

AT A T B R AT R A A R R B
T > AR R orh B - MR RZ A
T BAR g b i B R M A B R R T R L
HoAts R

A5y ] B A B 2 K e R B ([ %k ) < B
1 > O AR 45 i 2 8 S A B i

A2 M S AT R A A L = B KR W R R T
R AR Z B MR T K BE ] o



—E-MEEH

EERARRARRARAT

Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditors’ Remuneration

EY have been re-appointed as the Company’s external auditors by
shareholders at the 2013 annual general meeting until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting. They are primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, fees paid or payable to EY amount
to approximately HK$930,000 (2013: HK$883,000) for audit and
related services and HK$126,000 (2013: HK$109,000) for other non-

audit services which include the taxation services.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s
assets and reviewing its effectiveness. The system, including the
strategies, policies and expectations on the oversight of the Company’s
internal control and risk management, has been designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives.
Therefore, it can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud. The management is
accountable to the Board for implementing the strategies and policies

on internal control and risk management adopted by the Board.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function and their training

programmes and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Tin Chi is the Company Secretary. During the year under
review, Mr. Leung undertook at least 15 hours of relevant professional

training.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting/Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the directors on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who has made the requisition (as
the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”). Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening

an extraordinary general meeting.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are available for viewing on the Company’s

website at www.hongkongfoodinvestment.com.hk.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings/Right to Circulate
Resolution at Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholders
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be) who have a right to
vote at the relevant annual general meeting, may request to circulate
a resolution to be moved at an annual general meeting. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for circulating a resolution for annual general

meeting.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Company’s
registered office at Four Seas eFood Centre, No. 2 Hong Ting Road,
Sai Kung, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

On 1 April 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy reflecting mostly current practices of the Company for
communication with its shareholders. Such policy aims at
disseminating information in relation to the Group to shareholders in
a timely manner through a number of formal channels, which include
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars, and is
reviewed regularly by the Board to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company maintains a website at www.hongkongfoodinvestment.
com.hk as a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Company’s announcements,
business developments/operations and other information are available

for public access.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairmen of the Board and Board committees actively participate
in the annual general meeting and answer questions from the
shareholders. Notice of the annual general meeting is sent to the
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings including the annual
general meeting will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and the poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and of the Company after each shareholder meeting.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. A consolidated version of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditors’ Report &3 % & il i &
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To the shareholders of
Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 132,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 80 of Schedule 11 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com
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Ernst & Young RKE BB
22/F, CITIC Tower BEBHRREE IR
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 3 #% & il R &

EY =x

To the shareholders of
Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ZR&1E#H &

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE=2-NE=A=+—-HIEFE
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2014 2013
e Sy 11 R =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt it BT T BT T
REVENUE A 5 231,589 386,056
Cost of sales 8B A (206,948) (393,679)
Gross profit/(loss) BH () 24,641 (7,623)
Other income and gains oAt e A B W 25 5 9,638 3,902
Selling and distribution expenses S KA e (25,295) (16,549)
Administrative expenses ATECBH % (27,240) (28,975)
Finance costs Tl B AR 6 (4,229) (3,979)
Share of profits and losses of associates JE A W 72 A ) s A B s 1E 47,568 32,874
Fair value gains on financial assets NTEZE IR E AR
at fair value through profit or loss SR E Z AT E WA - 18
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX B BE i B A, () 7 25,083 (20,332)
Income tax credit/(expense) FifsBiik e, (B %) 10 210 (3,288)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR PN e N N
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY BRI AHZ
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY A, Ok 1) 11 25,293 (23,620)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AN BRI H HK cents HK cents
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY WA 45 e A, Ol 4R Al A
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
— Basic and diluted — FE A K 12 9.74 (9.10)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&2mE K& &K

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE=2-NE=A=+—-HIFE

2014 2013
- p = S
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT or
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AAE R O 1) 25,293 (23,620)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME il 4 1iif 4 %
Other comprehensive income to be IR ER B EEAZ
reclassified to profit or loss LAt 2> i W 2
in subsequent periods:
Share of other comprehensive income of Al B2 2 ) 1ol 2 T W 25
associates, net of tax (BrFifg) 3,338 8,232
Exchange differences on translation of e 5330 A1 S F 1 I S8 25
foreign operations (322) 391
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7 4§ Ji - fib 4 i W 2%

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (BRBLf%) 3,016 8,623

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AR B A8 2 i o3k O R) 8
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR JAAS A w2 T A E
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 28,309 (14,997)
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2014 2013
S %=
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
M 7t BT o T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik Gt W) ¥
Property, plant and equipment LB & ] 13 86,894 88,794
Investments in associates R EAFRZ’E 15 407,267 370,465
Prepayments and deposits TEAT R E KA 4 19 2,232 2,522
Other non-current asset HAth I 8 B A 16 540 540
Total non-current assets J I Bh B A 496,933 462,321
CURRENT ASSETS R ) %
Inventories BE 17 44,784 74,830
Trade receivables JE W B 5 Rk 18 14,442 22,377
Tax recoverable ] g [ At TE - 269
Prepayments, deposits and other TS BRI ~ WY 4 R At
receivables JRE Wik JE 19 3,484 6,059
Financial assets at fair value through WA PHZE BB AR
profit or loss 4 RlE 20 - 178
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B B4 S HIE H 21 42,332 65,884
Total current assets B AR 105,042 169,597
CURRENT LIABILITIES i By £1 4%
Due to an associate JE A W 42 2 ] 15 254 181
Trade and bills payables FEAT B 5y MR Ak e SR R 22 13,797 28,904
Other payables and accruals U Al 1 A 5K T e M AR 23 8,623 11,157
Interest-bearing bank borrowings R BT R B Z SR AT B 24 147,841 183,786
Total current liabilities i B £ A AR 170,515 224,028
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES L ) £ 5 i (65,473) (54,431)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 8 A DR ) £ 45
LIABILITIES 431,460 407,890
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I Gt 8 £ i
Accruals JEwH R 23 2,407 897
Deferred tax liabilities A S 5 TE £ A 25 1,567 1,777
Total non-current liabilities I B £ A 3,974 2,674
Net assets G E R 427,486 405,216
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2014 2013

e Sy 11 R =
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Mt it BT BT
EQUITY B 2%

Issued capital CEEAT B AR 26 117,095 25,959
Reserves Tt e 28(a) 310,391 379,257
Total equity HE 2i 484 427,486 405,216

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen &'

Director #

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis 3¢

Director #F
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Share of
Share Capital  Exchange other Proposed
Issued  premium redemption fluctuation reserves of  Retained final Total
capital account reserve reserve  associates profits  dividend equity
M
[B% ¢ R WA EXYEH RAAY REAN
BA  WbUR  RORG Wil R RERA BA HEmAG
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BHFLT  EBWTL  ERFL WL BETFL EWTL ENTFL EWTT
(Note 28(a))
(Hit280)
At 1 April 2012 RZZF—-ZENA-H 25959 90557 579 -3 219707 259 424719
Loss for the year KAEEBE = - - - - (23,620 - (23,620)
Other comprehensive income R RSO 2 s
for the year:
Share of other comprehensive income TEAK T A A e fly
of associates, net of tax 2L > BHEK = = = = 8,232 = - 8,232
Exchange differences on translation LIRS 5 A N
of foreign operations - - - 391 - - - 391
Total comprehensive loss for the year KEFA2TER - - - 391 8,232 (23,620 - (14,997)
Final 2012 dividend declared HR-Z-ZEKARA - - - - = = (259)  (25%)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest rRTR 8 ARl Z B AT 2
of the associates” subsidiary EReliy 40 = = = - 548 (2438) = (1910)
Transfer to share of other reserves of BREEGREATZ
associates Tt = - - - 118 (118) - -
At 31 March 2013 REZB-ZHZA=1—H 25,959 90,557* 579% 391 34.219%  253511% - 405,216
At 1 April 2013 RoF—-=ENH—H 25,959 90,557 579 391 34219 253,511 - 405,216
Profit for the year A = - - - - 05093 = 25293
Other comprehensive income AR 2 S
for the year:
Share of other comprehensive income HEAR T A A
of associates, net of tax 2R RRE - - - - 3,338 - - 3,338
Exchange differences on translation HEEANET TS
of foreign operations - - - (322) - - - (322)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 A - - - (322) 3,338 25,293 - 28,309
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Wemg s A Fl Z WA 2
of the associates subsidiaries I Rt - - - - 1,044 (7,083) - (6,039)
Transfer to share of other reserves of BREEGBEANZ
associates Tt - - - - (69) 69 - -
Transfer to issued capital (Note 26 BREUBIRA (W it2) 91,136 (90,557) (579) = = = = -
At31 March 2014 REZ-WEZR=1-H 117,095 -+ 69%  38.532F  271.790* - 407486
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of & R B SO\ B A BB IR DR 2 A A A

HK$310,391,000 (2013: HK$379,257,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

310,391,000 JG (=& — =4F : 379,257,0003 JC) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&8HEHRER

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE=2-NE=A=+—-HIFE

2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
Wik W T HEWT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING #BEHHHZH LR
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax KA aT e A (48 ) 25,083 (20,332)
Adjustments for: ik T 51 & JE A A 2
Finance costs i B B A 6 4,229 3,979
Share of profits and losses of associates Ak i % 23 W] i Al & Jis 16 (47,568) (32,874)
Bank interest income HATF BB 5 (26) (34)
Dividend income from financial assets A P 38 15 2 A MR
at fair value through profit or loss I 4 A E Z B A 5 (6) (693)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEwE - BB RSH
plant and equipment JHH=zZ W 5 (8,531) (110)
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZA FHEEBIELR
at fair value through profit or loss AR iy Sl g 2 W3S 5 (24) (1,323)
Gain on deemed acquisition of Pl ARAE i AT 4y W] A
additional interests in an associate WE 3% 2 W 2% - (496)
Depreciation Vr#g 6,528 4,049
Fair value gains on financial assets WA FEEBRBERARY
at fair value through profit or loss SRl E Z A E W AR 7 - (18)
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories Wk, (E ) FERE
to net realisable value w] 4% Bl A 7 (2,968) 2,968
(23,283) (44,884)
Decrease in amounts due from associates B W5 & 2 &) 3k JEH Z il A - 154
Decrease in inventories T8 Z A 32,993 90,270
Decrease in trade receivables REW’E 5 Rk Z2 WA 7,935 30,226
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, THATRIE ~ AT 4 Je oAt
deposits and other receivables JE Wk JE =2 3 A () 2,852 (6,959)
Increase in amounts due to associates JRE A Wik 7 2 R sk T 2 K 73 181
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills FEME MR R Z
payables B, (WA) (15,107) 2,031
Decrease in other payables and accruals JHE Al JE Ak T % M it £ AR
Z Wy 29 (1,316) (1,274)
Cash generated from operations REEBEMMAZE S 4,147 69,745
Hong Kong profits tax refunded 78 5] 7 s ) 45 B 269 -
Net cash flows from operating activities B EHEZBEWMA
— page 48 FH —48H 4,416 69,745
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&8HERER

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE=2-NE=A=+—-HIEFE
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2014 2013
—F—-WiE “E =4
Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Mt it BT BT T
Net cash flows from operating activities BEEHEZHERWA
— page 47 TR —47TH 4,416 69,745
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEEHZBERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received SR AT R B 26 34
Dividends received from financial assets  WCHUHR A F- 1 75 4% 15 25 AR
at fair value through profit or loss 1) 4 i = BB 6 693
Dividends received from an associate W T 2 o ] B S 8,066 8,066
Purchases of items of property, plant and i A# 3 -~ Wiz K& #IEH
equipment (7,964) (15,123)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BE R MEE
property, plant and equipment ZHA 12,070 110
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H %A 7 i 75 i 15 25 A MR
at fair value through profit or loss B 45 T 2 BT AR N 202 16,281
Net cash flows from investing activities WEEBEZHRESRATH 12,406 10,061
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ~ B¥EWH B2 B &
ACTIVITIES
New bank and trust receipt loans 4G SR AT R R A RE O AR 158,376 319,881
Repayment of bank and trust receipt loans & %2 SR 47 B 3k K 15 G W I8 &k (194,321) (391,387)
Interest paid [ERER DS (4,229) (3,979)
Dividends paid GRS - (2,596)
Net cash flows used in financing activities il & 3§ By = B & i 1 4 (40,174) (78,081)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BERBEFHEAHZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Bm, (W) S8 (23,352) 1,725
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ERZHERB&EFMEEE
of year 65,884 63,960
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, A/ ME X 58 By i 28 » 5
net (200) 199
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERZIERBEFHEH
AT END OF YEAR 42,332 65,884
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH 314 K 3l & % i % H &5 47
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z 5 b
Cash and bank balances B4 KERIT A TR 21 42,332 60,884
Time deposits with original maturity BEAEZEHE A R=MA
of less than three months when acquired — Z & 773K 21 - 5,000
42,332 65,884
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Statement of Financial Position Bt #& kR &

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

2014 2013
e Sy 11 R =4
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
Hf i BT o T o
NON-CURRENT ASSETS e By &
Interests in subsidiaries A W 2 B 14 156,696 198,475
CURRENT ASSETS Ui I
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wi o i 2 ) 14 12,391 468
Prepayments, deposits and other TR ~ 7T K
receivables S Al JE Wk JE 19 126 127
Cash and bank balances Bl 4 R SRAT 5517 21 172 3,155
Total current assets A A 12,689 3,750
CURRENT LIABILITIES i £ 4
Due to subsidiaries JE ) B i 2 ) 14 3,000 31,108
Other payables and accruals o Ath JRE ) 3K 0 S ME 5T AR 23 3,446 3,450
Total current liabilities ) AR 6,446 34,558
NET CURRENT ASSETS W% R, (Ff) 38
/(LIABILITIES) 6,243 (30,808)
Net assets B R 162,939 167,667
EQUITY HE 2%
Issued capital CEEAT B AR 26 117,095 25,959
Reserves Tt #hi 28(b) 45,844 141,708
Total equity HE 25 A8 {8 162,939 167,667

TAI Tak Fung, Stephen ¥
Director # F

MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis 3¢/t
Director & H
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Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s

31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. Aa&F

Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office of the Company is located at Four Seas eFood Centre, No.
2 Hong Ting Road, Sai Kung, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group’s principal activities consisted of the
trading of frozen meats, seafood and vegetables, and retailing
of consumer goods. The principal activities of associates are
investment holding, manufacturing and trading of snack foods,
confectionery, beverages, frozen food products, noodles, ham and
ham-related products, and the operations of restaurants.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$65,473,000. The directors believe that the Group has
sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its liabilities as
and when they fall due. Therefore, the consolidated financial

statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

AU B P BRI W R — SR A o T
JRSL Z A R T o A O W] R A I o s A
VB R 2 5% D N R A B R

FEN O AR EEEHERREFRBAR B
B R B o A e R NE R TS AR Z
BB BB > A OBER - K- T
JELEE il R~ MR B K B A R i A R
5> VA B A8 4 o

2.1 i Bk

AWM BRI B H T BT A G ((FEG
sl AT 1) U 2 7 B i o ) (7 s
B RS 1) CRLEE A 7 o B 2 R T ~ A
W ([ g el ) Lar) M
R A AU A W A I R R WA R o AR
S 785 kA 79 DAJRE S R A A > MESR A PRI
R AR A\ SR I < O T 4 A PR o AR
BrmE BT ([BH]) 25> BB A kW&
A > B A A S DY 4 T\ B R T AL

W_F—NE=ZH=+—H » REFHZHBAE
15 ¥ 1 8% 15:65,473,0009 76 » KA T EHER A
A S ) LA 70 R B I R R A AR A R B
B o B > ASER G B H R T R AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to

be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i1) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

2.1 i I (4)

B ik H 2k e

Ao S 5 A A A A ) % L R A ] (AR
[AHEE D KE—F-WE=ZH=+—HIL4
JEZ MBS AR o W O ) LA A W) 2 B R
A 90 AT D > S PR — BT s BOR AR -
Whf i 2 ] 2 S A6 A 5 T T A 4% ) B . IS A
AR > AR AT AR B AR 2 % S 1 R A 1R 2
IhE 2 Ak o

A AR ) P 2% A D 2 T B BT R I LA -
o~ WA - B R B iR AR A IR H R
L8 -

AN T SO A B DR 2 T 2 R P > A
B RGO S HE R R A —HK B H
H B A ) > A4 I i TR AT A LR A AR
B 5 B TR IR o T B RS 4> ) B RE A 25 S
5 1 o S 2R e Ve M > AR B AR RE 22 5 o

i A 452 ) 2k 25 S — O R A ) 2 D R
WSRO %M AR 2 EE (BREHE) XA
5 ~ (i) AT S 42 I M 2 2 MR G A % (i) A A 2
Wit skZ BEH 25 5 RBERGOFTBIREZ
2 FAE ~ i) B Ok AR 8 2 A P E K Gii) B
2 W P AT 8] O Ak 2 AR B 4R - BRI
At 2 i WAL 5 2 P9 i R 2 A AR B A S A 4 AL
A £ B B R R O L T R BRI 2 M
IR > A5 P I5 UL BT 40 JH AR AR AR B i A o
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Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s

31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKERS 11
and HKFRS 12

Amendments

HKFRS 13
HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKAS 36 Amendments

HK (IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKERS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKERS 12 - Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets -
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets (early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
June 2012

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13 and amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 36, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

ZEFNEEZF Y

Annual Report 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs

are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(¢)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements and
addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single control
model used for determining which entities are consolidated.
To meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an investor
must have (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. The
changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of
the Group to exercise significant judgement to determine
which entities are controlled.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries and
associates are included in notes 14 and 15 to the financial

statements.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required
to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied where its use is already required
or permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively and the adoption has had no material impact
on the Group’s fair value measurements. As a result of
the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for measuring
fair value have been amended. Additional disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of
financial instruments are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs

are as follows: (continued)

(d) The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items

(e

presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). Items
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at
a future point in time (for example, exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations, net movement on
cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale
financial assets) are presented separately from items which
will never be reclassified (for example, the revaluation of
land and buildings). The amendments have affected the
presentation only and have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. In addition, the
Group has chosen to use the new title “statement of profit
or loss” as introduced by the amendments in these financial

statements.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which is
not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the
disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-
generating units for which an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed during the reporting period, and
expand the disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their recoverable
amounts are based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group
has early adopted the amendments in these financial
statements. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

HKEFRS 9
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendments
HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Financial Instruments
Hedge Accounting and amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 393

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011) — Investment Entities '

Amendments to HKAS 11 Joint Arrangements —
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations *

Regulatory Deferral Accounts 3

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation *

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits —
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions *

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities !

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting '

Levies !

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
January 2014 *

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
January 2014 *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements for a period

beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and not applicable to the

Group

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

adoption

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with
the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value
change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have

been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made some
related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which include the
corresponding disclosures about risk management activity for
applying hedge accounting. The amendments to HKFRS 9 relax
the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which result
in more risk management strategies being eligible for hedge
accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility on the
hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased options and
non-derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments. In
addition, the amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply
only the improved accounting for own credit risk-related fair
value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as introduced
in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9 requirements at the
same time.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The previous
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 was removed by the
HKICPA in December 2013 and a mandatory effective date
will be determined after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is
completed. However, the standard is available for application
now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other

phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather
than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not have any
impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity
as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April
2014.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of

the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control

or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as

part of the Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or

loss.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in associates are treated
as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are

expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value

and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,

recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March.  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss of the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of

the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s

31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired

asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

()

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same

third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms
Buildings 2.5%

10% — 33% or over

the lease terms,

Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 10% — 20%
Computer systems 15% — 34%
Office equipment 10% — 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.
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31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value presented in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Annual Report 2014

2.4 B E it BOREE ()

B YE K I fib 2 b B 2 (A1)
Bk I KT

Bk B MR JE s A T A T R E A K B
A5 HE T 5 b AR A DR AT A L - R
AR o S A AR DL MR 3R 3 9
A B o Y 88 A AR W R o BB A TS 5 IR
WS i R 2 A B i A i B o I 4 e
WA R 2 — A S B Ay 2 B B o TR
REEH AR 8RR Z HABA R WEE A o WAE
7 MR 2 U 4R AR AR R o

A 75 W v 4 v

<5 00 S P (SO T T > A R < BB
Tl AL — A ) 2 BEAE R BN LA T e R
(B A A SR 0 3 65 B B R DL RS B )

o WEERRBESHZMERNCIEW ;K

o AR CEGRAE A OB iR A
Bk TR AL [ R | 2 Hk T 7 A K IR
Z TR SRR Z B SRR RS =
HZ AL 5 Fe(a) SR B O 2 1 KB
7 I B e R > () A 4 R S 1
s B B A KO0 A LB e [ > H T
G P R B

v A 5 ) el o A % I E T A B
T 2 REF B AT L AR 2 B > JLRF AN L 7 1R
B PR R R e T R B oy A
JEE o i J S S o 8 i A% B % S A K A L
W . o S A o AR
ACER 5 4 2 S A 2 T R A P e .
BRE o AT OUT > AR 5w G B LA o
8 5 A B A% 4 SR A 4R R PR 2
RER Jo 3 5 2 HE A 5 & o



—B-MEEH

EEARRARRARAT E

Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate

computed at initial recognition).
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Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not

reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities including an amount due to
associate, trade and bills payables, other payables and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit

or loss.
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HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s

31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis for stocks
of the trading segment and on the weighted average basis for
stocks of the retailing segment and includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other non-current asset

Other non-current asset represents an unlisted club debenture
which is intended to be held for long term purposes, and is stated
at cost less any impairment loss. The club debenture is tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating

unit level.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity

of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their

present values as appropriate.
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HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s

31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s

31 March 2014 =2-mE¥=A=+—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(c) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established; and

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute approximately 18% of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable

in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“‘equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model
or the Black-Scholes model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.
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HONG KONG FOOD INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #&3R& M s
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R & M5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of an overseas subsidiary and certain
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of an overseas subsidiary are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong

dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2014 was
HK$86,894,000 (2013: HK$88,794,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of investments in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for investments in associates at the end of each
reporting period. Investments in associates are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an investment in an associate exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to
sell is based on available data from observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the investments. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected share of future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associates, including the cash flows from the operations
of the associates and the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of
the investments; or the future cash flows expected to arise from
dividends to be received from the investments and from its
ultimate disposal and choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating
to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2014 was HK$1,445,000
(2013: HK$1,214,000). The amounts of unrecognised tax losses
for subsidiaries situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China at
31 March 2014 were HK$167,874,000 (2013: HK$155,742,000)
and HK$18,774,000 (2013: HK$10,583,000), respectively.
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEeEEAE R (F)

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

The Group conducts impairment reviews of financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards. Determining whether an asset
is impaired requires an estimation of the future cash flows and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance and its future results would be affected. As at
31 March 2014, a provision for impairment loss of trade
receivables of HK$3,054,000 (2013: HK$3,054,000) was made
and the carrying amount of trade receivables was HK$14,442,000
(2013: HK$22,377,000).

Provision for inventories

Management reviews an aging analysis of the Group’s inventories
at the end of each reporting period, and makes provision for
obsolete items when events or change in circumstances show that
the balance of inventories may not be realisable or are no longer
suitable for sale. The Group carries out an inventory review at
the end of each reporting period and makes provision for obsolete
items. The carrying value of inventories at 31 March 2014 was
HK$44,784,000 (2013: HK$74,830,000). Further details of which

are included in note 17 to the financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments for the year ended 31 March 2014 as follows:

(a) the trading segment is engaged in the trading of frozen

meats, seafood and vegetables in Hong Kong; and

(b) the retailing segment is engaged in the retailing of consumer

goods in Mainland China.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that interest income,
dividend income and unallocated gains, a gain on deemed
acquisition of additional interests in an associate, fair value gains
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, finance
costs, share of profits and losses of associates and corporate and

other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable, investments in associates
and certain items of property, plant and equipment as these assets

are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BB IBER (5)

INFORMATION (continued)

Trading Retailing Total
®5 8 At
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
TR -WAEE R4 DR -WEE DR Z4 DR -NEE R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BHTL HWFTT EBWTI EWFTT BWFTI BT T
Segment revenue 7811 ON 187,284 359,627 44,305 26,429 231,589 386,056
Segment results Vigi e 3 (61) (32,747) (11,686) (12,617) (11,747) (45,364)
Reconciliation: B -
Interest income Fl B BA 26 34
Dividend income and BB WA K
unallocated gains & 30 2,016
Gain on deemed AR AR A
acquisition of Wi & A ]
additional interests HAMRE 25
in an associate PRE - 496
Fair value gains on A P 8B
financial assets at Ha AT
fair value through SREEZ
profit or loss AR R & - 18
Finance costs il A (4,229) (3,979)
Share of profits and R A Wi 7 2 ]
losses of associates it F1) J% s 16 47,568 32,874
Corporate and other 2] B oAl
unallocated expenses AR 43 L B 3% (6,565) (6,427)
Profit/(loss) before tax 7Bt i #:F]
(i 18) 25,083 (20,332)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BB IWER (H)
INFORMATION (continued)
Trading Retailing Total
5 24 b )
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
SRWE DR CSE CR-NE SR SE CR-Ng SRS

HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$ 000
wYTIT #WToT W TxT AW TT  BFTX  EBFTT

Segment assets O 157,268 155,411 41,098 43,817 198,366 199,228
Reconciliation: HE -
Elimination of PR 8 M WALk T

intersegment Eiig ]

receivables (60,304) -
Investments in W 2 A T

associates ZHE 407,267 370,465
Corporate and other 2 T B HoAth

unallocated assets R4 L& B 56,646 62,225
Total assets R A 601,975 631,918
Segment liabilities Vg 3= 164,879 217,721 64,872 3,721 229,751 221,442
Reconciliation: HE -
Elimination of P B R A5 2k JEL

intersegment i

payables (60,304) -
Corporate and other ] J At

unallocated liabilities 743 Bt £ & 5,042 5,260
Total liabilities B 174,489 226,702
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BB IWER (H)
INFORMATION (continued)
Trading Retailing Total
5 24 b )
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
SR R -E4 DF-NE R =4 DR -NEE =4

HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$ 000
wYTIT #WToT W TxT AW TT  BFTX  EBFTT

Other segment oAl 3 &R -
information:
Write-down/ MR, (1] 488 )
(write-back) of FEEW
inventories to net 5% BlFE
realisable value (2,968) 2,968 - - (2,968) 2,968
Capital expenditure® & A BH 3 * 82 199 8,169 15,630 8,251 15,829
Depreciation Vreg 854 857 3,691 1,208 4,545 2,065
Unallocated R 43 B 37 8%
depreciation 1,983 1,984
6,528 4,049
Non-current assets**  JEJf B & A+ 14,042 17,259 20,147 17,136 34,189 34,395
Unallocated R 43 e I i B
non-current assets & E 55,477 57,461
89,666 91,856
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and ® GABYAIEREYE S WE RS-
equipment.

*#%  Non-current assets exclude investments in associates. = JEMETEEABTERE S AR ZHE -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA ~ oAb A B3k
GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WABNARGEEZ Z%8 > IHREZREXE G0
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and g e RSB EEA o WA~ HAIRA K
trade discounts. An analysis of revenue, other income and gains W2EZ AT
is as follows:
Group
e
2014 2013
R L e
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T T BT
Revenue WA 231,589 386,056
Other income H Al A
Bank interest income SRATH B A 26 34
Claims received WA WA 69 192
Dividend income from financial &P AE 75 3 15 25 AR
assets at fair value through B 4 i 2 B R A
profit or loss 6 693
Gross rental income AR A WA 637 698
Sundry income HEE U A 144 2
882 1,619
Gains W 2k
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 5072 5 > W 201 354
Gain on disposal of items of MEWE - BE LRMIEE
property, plant and equipment PR 8,531 110
Gain on disposal of financial assets & A FEZEE R AR
at fair value through profit or loss £ i E Z W AR 24 1,323
Gain on deemed acquisition of B AR AR i AT 8 O ) AL AP RE A
additional interests in an associate Z Wk - 496
8,756 2,283
9,638 3,902
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. B RA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: B A Z A HT I F ¢
Group
e
2014 2013
R L -
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank and trust receipt JHN— AN 2 AR
loans wholly repayable within Z AT B B AR e g
one year A B 4,229 3,979
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/

Annual Report 2014

7. BRBERTEA O #)

AGEEZBHREEMN (ER) Sk G

(crediting): A) :
Group
£
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
At ik W T BT T
Cost of inventories sold CERFEZ A 209,916 390,711
Depreciation e 13 6,528 4,049
Rental expenses under operating el R i AR A
leases in respect of land and Z 4B
buildings:
Minimum lease payments T AR A 55 FlL 4 11,637 27,668
Contingent rents BOAR A 4 2,529 841
14,166 28,509
Auditors’ remuneration A% B T 4 930 883
Employee benefit expense (including & B & 1 5 3%
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (RIEFEFME (M 728))
Wages, salaries, allowances and T& ~ #H4 -~ il
benefits in kind L EE 45 A 21,256 20,358
Pension scheme contributions BIKEFE Z Atk 2,128 1,547
23,384 21,905
Foreign exchange differences, net FEE 5o, 5% B > AR (201) (354)
Net rental income ek A FHE (524) (524)
Fair value gains on financial assets %2 {8 7 8 # %5 A BR
at fair value through profit or loss P 4 1 2 O\ T (A Wk 2 - (18)
Write-down/(write-back) of Wk, (B8 ) 17 & =)
inventories to net realisable value* 5 Bl fE (2,968) 2,968
Gain on deemed acquisition of AR Ve T AT 2 A A
additional interests in an associate® &AM 25 2 W EEA - (496)

* The write-down/(write-back) of inventories to net realisable value is
included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The gain on deemed acquisition of additional interests in
an associate is included in “Other income and gains” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

MR () R B BIFEC B RS

HEERTHERA A -

A BB AT B A R BT AR 2 R B AR

AR SR I A A T s | e
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), is as follows:

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

8. HiYM 4

AR Y I I 4 b BB R A s A B (R
6225 ) PR L LB 78 AE I T P88 ¢

Group
#H

2014 2013

ZF P R =4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T o ¥ N

Fees 45 595 565

Other emoluments: Al 1 4 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e B REY

in kind Fl 25 4,748 5,019

Pension scheme contributions PENY o 1| P 205 221

4,953 5,240

5,548 5,805

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

(a) M IEPfTE Y

FRNCHRTELIEATERZEEWT -

2014 2013

R4 e SN2

HKS$’000 HK$°000

BT T o

CHAN Kay Cheung BRAL B 60 60
LAN Yee Fong, Steve John [=E5yn 60 60
LUI Shing Ming, Brian Gl 60 60
180 180

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil).

A D 3 2 Lt T < B A T B L LT HE R

(ZF—=4 ) o
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. WML (&)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors b) BATER
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
Wi 4 > HWh VAR &5 #
Mg BB A Z sk S T B4 51
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T T T
2014 R4
Executive directors: PIATES
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen Hm 120 2,880 8 3,008
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis K 60 1,230 124 1,414
TAI Chun Kit E i 55 = 3 58
YIP Wai Keung B {5 R 60 = 3 63
TSE Siu Wan A E 60 = 3 63
LAI Yuk Chuen HE R 60 638 64 762
415 4,748 205 5,368
2013 TR
Executive directors: HATHES -
TAI Tak Fung, Stephen e 120 2,880 12 3,012
MAN Wing Cheung, Ellis K 60 1,230 124 1,414
TAI Chun Leung HER 25 271 15 311
YIP Wai Keung YEfR TR 60 = 3 63
TSE Siu Wan A& 60 = 3 63
LAI Yuk Chuen BER 60 638 64 762
385 5,019 221 5,625

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013:

Nil).

N K BN R AT 0 % PR e R
MR A (R =4 ) -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. u A 35 M B v A B
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FN > AMHFMRE S REAK = MERE (2R
directors (2013: three directors), details of whose remuneration — =4 AL o R FE A RO B
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the Fif 58 o JAAAE BEH AR WAL (T — =48 : Wifir)
remaining two (2013: two) non-director, highest paid employees FEFELAFWEEREBEZMESFEHBWT

for the year are as follows:

Group
£ |
2014 2013
ZF N TEEA
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits W U R E WA A
in kind 1,118 1,169
Pension scheme contributions B ARl 2 Ak 76 86
1,194 1,255
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose EEEEGREEEBMAETH AN Z
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: H :
Number of employees
e B A%
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =R
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % %1,000,000% 75 2 2
10. INCOME TAX 10. B8
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the FH A 2 B [E] A A AR BE O N S AR T OB B A v A A
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong ZWERBLRE A o R O NI 40 gl A v ) 45 AR A
Kong during the year (2013: Nil). No provision for Mainland (=4 ) o HNVREFENAREER
China corporate income tax has been made as the Group did not S A (T 95 v I R s AR 2 BE R AL R A o KR
generate any assessable profits in Mainland China during the year I S 4 el e B B A K B A R B (2
(2013: Nil). —=4E L fE) o
Group
£ |
2014 2013
—R -4 E =
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T

Deferred tax (note 25) and total tax ~ #EIEBLIE (M it25) R A
charge/(credit) for the year ZHABIE I (R (210) 3,288
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

10. P 15 8¢ ()

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/ R AR AT e H B AR AR K
(loss) before tax at the statutory rate for the country/jurisdiction VRS E W 2 i BLR G o FR B A Yas A
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are S (B8R 2 BIE W (%) B DL B Bl
domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rate, and SHEZBIESZ 7 (%) BHHE » DL R Jd R &R
a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) (FP¥kERiR) HERARZ HENMT :
to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
Group
M
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =4
HK$’000 % HKS$’ 000 %
BT BT
Profit/(loss) before tax BB i R, Ol 48 25,083 (20,332)
Tax at applicable tax rates i 58 B R HH AT
Z B 3,340 13.3 (4,274) 21.0
Profits and losses attributable W 2 2 ) R A ¥ 1
to associates K e 18 (7,849) (31.3) (5,424) 26.7
Income not subject to tax BB Z WA (1,429) (5.7) (123) 0.6
Expenses not deductible for tax AN ] A o I
Z X 1,798 7.2 399 (2.0)
Tax losses utilised from previous B B
periods i IE s 18 - - (114) 0.6
Tax losses not recognised W TR 2 o JE IS 1 3,930 15.7 12,812 (63.0)
Others F At - - 12 (0.1)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s FRACEE [ BB
effective rate X (HE A
Z FiIE (210) (0.8) 3,288 (16.2)
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to HE 4% T 42 2y W] 2 BiJH 411,783,000 o6 (ZF
HK$11,783,000 (2013: HK$9,952,000) is included in “Share of —=4F £ 9,952,000 0) B RN ARG HAER
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of Z [ AL Tk A W) A T e 48 1 A o

profit or loss.
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PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of
HK$4,728,000 (2013: profit of HK$1,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 28(b)).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company of HK$25,293,000 (2013: loss of HK$23,620,000),
and on the 259,586,000 (2013: 259,586,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years.

11.

12.

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

A 2y B 2 B AT AN B A,
O 1)

BE R -WEZH=Z+—HILEEZARAH
HE 25 BT A 3 WEAY %7 A 6 A 4 555 5 184,728,000 9
JL (ZF— =4 %l 1,000 00) » TNAR A FH
Z WA R A R B (M FE28(b)) ©

7 2% il 3 8 B g P A S A B
#A O i)

T 1B R A R 75 AR 08 A AR BE A 8 ) % A8 RE A
Fi A % EAG 5 71 25,293,0008 78 (=& —=

) 1823,620,000% J0) > K 4F N O 84T 58 B
259,586,000/8 ( =& — =4 : 259,586,000/ ) il
;%j °

HREERKE R -NERF =421
St HILFESERBEREEH TR
WA B > PR I Sl S A o S R A T 2
I Z A eI AE A Ol 1) 4 Hh 8
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 93 ~ B B ak

Group #£H
Leasehold
improve-
Land ments,
and furniture Motor Computer Office

buildings  and fixtures vehicles systems equipment Total
RITHY
®E- KR

LMY KR il EWAKE  BAZRMH it

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000  HK$000 HK$°000
#Wrx  #WTo  EWTx  BWTr EWTx EWTI

31 March 2014 ZE-WEZH=+—H
At 31 March 2013 and REF-ZEZAZ+—H
at 1 April 2013: R_-F-=ZHNA—H:
Cost TN 102,205 17,439 9,760 4,090 1,556 135,050
Accumulated depreciation R RO
and impairment (31,031) (4,419) (6,640) (3,119) (1,047) (46,256)
Net carrying amount T VR 71,174 13,020 3,120 971 509 88,794

At 1 April 2013, net of REZR-ZHNA—H >
accumulated depreciation S R R

and impairment 71,174 13,020 3,120 971 509 88,794
Additions wE = 7,356 314 155 426 8,251
Depreciation provided EN ORI

during the year (2,082) (3,177) (725) (319) (225) (6,528)
Disposals & (2,319) (1,093) (127) = = (3,539)
Exchange realignment B 5t i 2 - (76) @) - ) (84)

At31 March 2014, netof ~ REZF—NEZH=+—H
accumulated depreciation CLA0 bR B a3 R e

and impairment 66,773 16,030 2,578 807 706 86,894
At 31 March 2014: R-F-NEZA=+—H:
Cost A 98,606 23,161 6,559 4,241 1,850 134,417
Accumulated depreciation Rh 8 R
and impairment (31,833) (7,131 (3,981) (3,434) (1,144 (47,523)

Net carrying amount HR T A 66,773 16,030 2,578 807 706 86,894
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13. Y93 ~ BB e il (A7)

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

(continued)
Group &M
Leasehold
improve-
Land ments,
and furniture Motor Computer Office
buildings  and fixtures vehicles systems equipment Total
HEHT
B IR
THRET REE Y BWAR  MAERMH it
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
#HTr  #NTr #¥TT B¥TT BFTx #ENTx
31 March 2013 SR -ZEZAZH
At 1 April 2012: REZR—ZHENA—H
Cost JRA 102,205 3,336 9,646 3,122 1,068 119,377
Accumulated depreciation B R
and impairment (28,943) (3,312) (6,363) (2,961) 976) (42,555)
Net carrying amount R T S 73,262 24 3,283 161 92 76,822
At 1 April 2012, net of R-F—-ZHNA—H
accumulated depreciation S R R
and impairment 73,262 24 3,283 161 92 76,822
Additions RE - 13,918 472 956 483 15,829
Depreciation provided N
during the year (2,088) (1,092) (641) (157) (71) (4,049)
Exchange realignment T 56 e 2 = 170 6 11 5 192
At31 March 2013, netof ~ REZF—-ZHF=ZA=+—H >
accumulated depreciation CLf0 bR B a3 R e
and impairment 71,174 13,020 3,120 971 509 88,794
At 31 March 2013: REZZF-=£=f=+—H:
Cost A 102,205 17,439 9,760 4,090 1,556 135,050
Accumulated depreciation B R
and impairment (31,031) (4,419) (6,640) (3,119) (1,047) (46,256)
Net carrying amount R i ¢ £ 71,174 13,020 3,120 971 509 88,794
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The Group’s land included in property, plant and equipment are
situated in Hong Kong and are held under the following lease

terms:

Annual Report 2014

13. Y93 ~ BB e il (A7)

AL G A BB B Al 2 b e A A
W W T I MAFA

Net carrying amount

JITTRER
2014 2013
TR P4 R E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Long term leases 8,252 9,460
Medium term leases 18,333 18,888
26,585 28,348
14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. 77 B )& 2 vl 2 B ¥
Company
A
2014 2013
S —g—=4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT o BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE BTy o TR A 39,004 39,004
Loans to subsidiaries i () /NI P = & 126,741 168,520
165,745 207,524
Impairment (9,049) (9,049)
156,696 198,475

An impairment of HK$9,049,000 has been recognised for an
unlisted investment with a carrying amount of HK$12,049,000
(before deducting the impairment loss) (2013: HK$12,049,000)
because the carrying amount of the investment in the subsidiary
exceeded its recoverable amount as estimated by the directors.
There was no change in the impairment account during the current

and prior years.

Fo R EE AN R B R A R 38 < R T A T
W T 4 5 PRI O R R T L %% 12,049,000 7T (411
B A R 4R AT ) (B — =48+ 12,049,000 7T)
Z 1 Ik BT B i e 52 949,049,000 7T ©
T AR AR B B AR AR PE > YA R P S A W o
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s current assets and current liabilities of HK$12,391,000
(2013: HK$468,000) and HK$3,000,000 (2013: HK$31,108,000),
respectively, are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The loans to subsidiaries included in investments in subsidiaries
above are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of the directors, these advances are
considered as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

14. 77 WY 8 2 vl 2 8% (A7)

A\ i B A A O B B P R R % M A
B B 2 ] R 43 1 412,391,000 0T (R —=
4E 1 468,000% 7)) 523,000,000 76 (=T —=
4F 1 31,108,000%70) » 3% EHCH - 68 KA
BB -

045 LA A 7 2 B T A 2
SO S S B A SR A«
R ) I 4T W U
AT -

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: ZTLEMBAFRZHHBWT
Percentage
Place of Nominal value of equity

incorporation/ of issued attributable
registration ordinary to the Company Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect activities

A 2w EAN

kW S [RYIETR 11 Wi {4 e
E. X e B 588 JBe A i fFL M G2 B30
Capital Season Investments British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment
Limited Islands/ 13£5E holding
Hong Kong ESECY

EIBRLHE
Tk
Hung King Development Hong Kong HK$400,000 - 100 Property
Limited & 400,000%5 0 holding
BRBRARAF WA
William Food Company Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 - Trading of
Limited 7 vk 10,000,000% JG frozen meats,
WIS B A R A seafood and
vegetables
HKHE 5
JEE M Y iy A A e People’ s Republic HK$32,000,000 = 100 Retailing for
AR 2 A of China (“PRC”)/ (2013: consumer
Mainland China HK$20,000,000) goods
L N 32,000,000% JG ZHEIEE
(T 1) o ok B (ZF—=4:
20,000,000% 7T )

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm * N I 7 v 2 K & St Rl S % B Bk A gk 4 BR 48 4%

of the Ernst & Young global network.

2 This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

HoAb ke 5 2 A o

A R 2 R T 3% R I A 2 AR AR
3% e

b3 B 5 #5544 RS A M R
T A Z W A3 W o B RS L
Al B J 2 ) 7 5 A W A A OC R o
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15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. A Bk 8 A vl 2 B4 F
Group
#EH
2014 2013
R4 SR =4
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Vi o
Share of net assets JEAL & 7 FE 394,903 358,101
Goodwill on acquisition W B Ak 2 12,364 12,364
407,267 370,465
Market value of listed shares b R 2 E 619,927 299,593
Goodwill
[k
HK$°000
W o
Cost and carrying amount R_F-_HFWNH—H - ZF=ZF=ZH=1+—H-
at 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, R EZANA I ERZR-NE=ZA=Z1H
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 Z AR T TG B 12,364

The amount due to an associate included in the Group’s current

liabilities is unsecured, interest-free and repayable under normal

trading terms.

w58 0 i 3 £ £ M AR T Dk O T
A~ S B R — B B R R -
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15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
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15. 7 W6k 28 A vl 2 B ¥ (41)

(continued)
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: ZEEFE AT FEBWT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation/ attributable
Name issued shares held registration to the Group Principal activities
A T8 sk W 7 4 1M A
# 1 JBe By 2 ¥ N % ic o L E-ipidia T RRH
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Ordinary shares Cayman Islands 29.7 Investment
Limited W i B BH 2 T holding
VU Y 4 B A B A ] B ik
Fancy Talent Limited* Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.7 Marketing of
REWTEA R A+ W8 R snack foods
AN Z T HE R
Four Seas Mercantile Limited (i) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.7 Trading in
PO B 5 A R AT (i1) Non-voting s snack foods,
deferred shares confectionery
(i) 2 B and beverages
(i) JHE 43 5% 0 B B¢ A7y /NEE S BER B
i ZHE 5
Four Seas Foods (Shantou) Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.7 Trading in
Co., Ltd.* of HK$96,000,000 Mainland China confectionery
VYA Il BE) AR A ] OB B AR PN and food products
96,000,000% 7C BRERMZHS
Four Seas (Suzhou) Food Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.7 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* of US$16,500,000 Mainland China of beverages
PO (R ) £ A FR 2 ) CAR A o R B Ok B ik b %
16,500,000 7&
Guang Dong Fourseas Frozen Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.7 Trading in
Food Products Co., Ltd.* of RMB35,300,000 Mainland China frozen food
B SR PG 4 R A B 2 ] (2013: w7 vk B products and
RMB20,300,000) snack foods
O 4R B A &R &
A R#35,300,00078 NEZH G
(ZF—=4
A B 20,300,0007C)
Hong Kong Biscuit Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.5 Investment
(International) Limited* % i A holding
L (BB ) A B A W) = BB ek
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15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (continued)

Annual Report 2014

15. 7 W6k 28 A vl 2 B ¥ (41)

#EEBEAFGFENT ¢ ()

Percentage
of ownership

Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation/ attributable
Name issued shares held registration to the Group Principal activities
A O sl kg 7 45 190 M A
# 1 JBe B 2 W % ic W L E-¥ipid A EX =3
Hong Kong Ham Holdings Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.7 Manufacturing
Limited i B B and packaging
T U B g o P AT PR 8 ) of ham and
ham-related
products
B T A KR K
A7 B K T E i
J.P. Inglis Company Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.7 Trading in
KR L HEGTHERAA W HH food materials
R RHE 5
Kung Tak Lam Shanghai Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.4 Restaurant
Vegetarian Cuisine Limited 9 B & operations
Dk LR R AR A F BELR
Li Fook (Qingdao) Foods Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.7 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* of US$3,970,000 Mainland China of noodles
Al (5 &) & A BRA ] * O 4R BEA Sl il PN %l fr
3,970,0003 7t
New Kondo Trading Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 29.7 Trading in
Limited W FURE Japanese food

AR 5 A R

materials

H A £ JEORHE 5
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15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (continued)

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

15. 7 W6k 28 A vl 2 B ¥ (41)

#EEBEAFGFENT ¢ ()

Percentage
of ownership

Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation/ attributable
Name issued shares held registration to the Group Principal activities
A O kWS 7 45 190 M A
# 1 JBe B 2 W % ic W L E-ipidia T RRH
T 5 A PR ] Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.7 Trading in
of RMB500,000 Mainland China confectionery
OB B AR PPN and food
A B #500,00070 products
R KB MZ S
TESE DU PN Py A A R A ]+ Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.7 Manufacturing
of HK$37,000,000 Mainland China and packaging
3R AR PN of ham and
37,000,000 7T ham-related
products
o R A % Kk Bk e
A7 B K I8 5
JE N T PR W R A BR A H Paid-up capital PRC/ 29.4 Restaurant
of RMB73,959,210 Mainland China operations
O 4R B A Rk B REPELE

A R73,959,2107C

& Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. All
associates were indirectly held by the Company.

Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited, which is considered a
material associate of the Group, is accounted for using the equity
method.

G € E R S-S T 3 R e R
FoAb il 5 A R A o

3 B 5 R 5 TR AR T A R S A M
7 I SR Z I A A o SRR A S
Fo A 1ok 2 0N W) BRI AR A TR o PR B A
Al A A B R A -

A A AR I ORI
" 75 DARE 25 95 AR o

20 ) O AR A R A
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15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited adjusted

15. 7 W6k 28 A vl 2 B ¥ (41)

Annual Report 2014

A 25 DY Y AR A R A ] 2 B R
(REATA € 5H B 22 B Z W 4 ) R A 6 2 ik

for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the % 9 R E 2 BHER -
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:
2014 2013
—F—WiE R
HK$’000 HK$°000
T BT o
Current assets B 1,625,372 1,475,699
Non-current assets Ik B % A 964,578 989,686
Current liabilities W H £ (1,151,886) (1,143,859)
Non-current financial liabilities, MBS a 6 - A ERFEENE SRR
excluding trade and other payables T LAt JE A K T R 8 A
and provision (60,284) (74,533)
Non-current liabilities E IR =R (19,095) (18,251)
Net assets ¥ E 1,358,685 1,228,742
Less: net assets attributable to W2 FE e IR HE A ME A 2 A
non-controlling interest (30,065) (24,017)
Net assets attributable to owners Wi O w) BE Oy W] R N A 2
of the parent of the associate gty i 1,328,620 1,204,725
Reconciliation to the Group’s B AR MR T oy W) 2 R AR 2 IR ¢
interest in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 2<% 5 # f # Z L fil 29.7% 29.7%
Group’ s share of net assets of the A ] AN T 8 8 W) 8 B R
associate, excluding goodwill N 394,903 358,101
Goodwill on acquisition WAL B TR 2 T (i R U A
(less cumulative impairment) 12,364 12,364
Carrying amount of the investment BEZIRHAE 407,267 370,465
Revenues LN 2,910,406 2,899,647
Profit for the year 47 J fai F) 152,280 107,203
Other comprehensive income J Athy 2 T UK 25 10,761 28,410
Total comprehensive income AR 2T MK A AR AR
for the year 163,041 135,613
Dividend received S99 58 8,066 8,066
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16. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET 16. &b I Gt B ¥ 2
The club debenture represents an entrance fee paid for the use of GHESREREHEREEZAGE > I
club facilities and is held on a long term basis. HRIIAEERSR -
17. INVENTORIES 17. # 8
Group
e L]
2014 2013
e Sk 2 TR =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT o B o
Finished goods B 44,784 74,830
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. HE e B 5 Jik X
Group
%M
2014 2013
e S k2 R =4
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T o
Trade receivables e Wi B2 5 e sk 17,496 25,431
Impairment TAE (3,054) (3,054)
14,442 22,377
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEMBEE P ZH SR DGE R T %
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is P BREREAMNK - e BAE—ZE=M
normally required. The credit period is generally one to three H o BHEFHAEEHE B - ALK
months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group 2 1) L I AR W R 2 IR R R T > I A R
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables R 1 2 I A o 0 A B 6 ) A E A B A
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly ik o BEHS Ll H i > DL RAREE [ 2 U 5 IR
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the WP Z 2 uAbME P AR > B E K
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number AR B o A AR T N A R S A R R A AR AT
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of FGAH & S A TR T - TEACE 5 IRk T R
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit B e

enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. HE e B 5 Mk (%)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the R HIR - MR RS B R BRI AE R 2

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of impairment FEW R 5 MRk Z IR A T R

provisions, is as follows:
Group
3|

2014 2013
—®—WiE R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T W T IC
Within 1 month A A 5,841 9,841
1 to 2 months 12218 H 6,895 11,486
Over 2 months M H Y E 1,706 1,050
14,442 22,377

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

JE W S 5 M ok < WA A S B B DL AN

Group
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
YT BT T
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, M_F—TFENH—H > ZF =4
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 ZHA=+—H 2 -=4NH—H
R -NE=ZHA=Z+—H 3,054 3,054

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables was a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$3,054,000 (2013: HK$3,054,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$3,054,000 (2013:
HK$3,054,000). The individually impaired trade receivables
relate to customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in payment and the balances were not expected to be

recovered.

g W B B R AR T A R A
T W T R 453,054,000 0 (ZF — =48 ¢
3,054,000% 70 ) = {8l 51 HE e B2 5 HR 3k A H e
8 453,054,000 7 (ZF — =4 : 3,054,000%
J6) o I8 O I AE 2 HE WL R B MR Ak U B R O B
P sl ]OIR K2 % P A BR > T 45 R AR 4 A AT

L EI
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered

to be impaired is as follows:

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

18. ME W B 5 Wik sk (%)
5L 2 R U2 M55 Mk 2 B B 4 A 40

Group
£y |

2014 2013
L —g—=#
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 7 48 76 241 i 4B 12,731 21,320
Less than 1 month past due L A 1| A 1,612 871
1 to 2 months past due 1 Z 248 A 98 62
Over 2 months past due g ipX T DENY S 1 124
14,442 22,377

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

S 90 0 191 AL 2 AR T e O ) T
BRZRKBAREF -

2 9 SN AR U 2 O W B 0 ek i A 4
ARG R ZH P - MRS > A
AT EFR > B E R B R I
TS B > % S5 A R S B A T A OB IE] > W
JEJE AR Hh O 1B A
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 19. TEAT K ~ 5T 48 B 2 il 0k S
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
e A
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR-WE CFCSFE CR-WE SR =R
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT W T o T T BT T
Prepayments TE A 3 IH 1,473 2,991 123 124
Deposits and other receivables &1 4x S - fils J#E 15 3k T 4,243 5,590 3 3
5,716 8,581 126 127
Less: Portion classified W B IR E)
as non-current Ay (2,232) (2,522) - -
3,484 6,059 126 127
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The byt i W e B s o b AL R AL G A T
financial assets included in the above balances relate to A T T R A R0 8k 2 E R o
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. 3% 20 VA 3 38 45 2 A i 1Y 4 il
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
Group
3|
2014 2013
e Sk 2 “E =4
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Listed equity investments, b RERR B o T - U
at market value: Hong Kong - 178
As at 31 March 2013, the above equity investments were NRoFZ—=ZF=H=+—H > Ll G

classified as held for trading. SEEEEEE o
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. Bl BB &S HEH

Group Company
£ A

2013 2014 2013
- S 1K —F—-= e S 1 R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T W 0TI BT T
Cash and bank balances B4 R RAT AT 42,332 60,884 172 3,155
Time deposits & WA K 5,000 - -
Cash and cash equivalents Bie KB4 S HE H 42,332 65,884 172 3,155

22.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$5,360,000 (2013: HK$8,909,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and fourteen days depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

R EE AR > AREEDNRE ([ AR 5{E
Z B4 B R AT B 17 455,360,000 08 (—F—=
4 : 8,009,000%70) o A R¥WAR B B Skl
T o (ERE B v 1B K e A o A B0 A1) A 4 E
B ME S A A BLRL A > AN S A o 7 R R AT
AT A o He S 2 SR AT AR N R S 4 s Al
B

SRAT BG4 HBRAT A7 KR 2% DL 380 1 3R B I
B o MMEERTIENTF-HETHHZ
A TR0 S0 TR AR > T A 5 2 B R B A oK
3 $% 45 B 2 0 39T S 90 Ak ) R R IR B, o R
AT REAF T AR I AT 91 Sl 8 7 Ay Rl ek R A R4 S
BT -

22. HEAT B 50 Mie sk B 5% ¥R

T IR AR R RS H O] 2 M AT B 5 R AR
RIBZIRB AT

Group
%M

2014 2013
ZRB WA R =4
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT o BT or
Within 1 month 1fEH A 12,856 23,367
1 to 2 months 12218 H 941 5,537
13,797 28,904

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

HE o 55 W 5k % 9 o B — 30560 H J9T R 45
fit o
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23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24
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23. JU il Ak I B M it £ A6

Group Company
#M AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
e Sl K —F—= “F WA R =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT 7B W For
Other payables HAth W A 35K T 7,535 9,541 3,446 3,450
Accruals JE 5 £ A 3,495 2,513 - -
11,030 12,054 3,446 3,450
Less: Portion classified W BRI
as non-current HB 45y (2,407) (897) - -
8,623 11,157 3,446 3,450

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term
of three months.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK

KA A HKIEH IR > HERMTFHR/R=MA -

24. AT ) R 2 BT B

BORROWINGS
2014 2013
R4 —EF =K
Effective Effective
interest interest
Group rate  Maturity HKS$’000 rate Maturity HK$’000
g/ 3| LY ES BWMB BT EBANE FIHH b 3
Current W m
Short term loan J 41K 1 J 1A 2.17% 1-3 months 115,000 2.24% 1-3 months 153,500
— unsecured 1=¢¢ 1-3 H 1-31# H
Trust receipt loans 90 G 1145 56 U B 1.98% 2-3 months 32,841 1.95% 3 months 30,286
— unsecured i 2-3f H 36 H
147,841 183,786

All short term loan and trust receipt loans are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, bear interest at floating interest rates and are

repayable within one year.

Fiv 6 350 8 K S A5 ol 0 Bk DA W E RHE - %
FEARER > WK —FNEE -
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25, ¥E %t B JH
RENBELEREAGEAEEZSZBHWT ¢

25. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Group £ M
Deferred tax liabilities 3B %iE B £ 48
Losses available
Accelerated for offsetting
tax against future
depreciation taxable profits Total
W i) DL SN AR
o 228 Bt I JE R i ik A
Uit 685 2 M 4 A5t
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BHTI BHTI
At 1 April 2012 P_F—_HFMNH—H (2,025) 575 (1,450)
Deferred tax charged AR FE R R 2R N
to the statement of 1Bk Z 4R 4L B IH
profit or loss (Ht#t10)
during the year (note 10) (202) (125) (327)
At 31 March 2013 and HoZF—-=#=H=+—H
1 April 2013 F_F—=FMNH—H (2,227) 450 (1,777)
Deferred tax credited/ AR PR B AR RN
(charged) to the statement I (HBR) Z B
of profit or loss during B (Bf=E10)
the year (note 10) (163) 373 210
At 31 March 2014 HoF-NE=ZH=+—H (2,390) 823 (1,567)
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Group (continued)

Deferred tax assets

25 3Bt AL (7))
e ()

HE % BE O RE

Losses available

Annual Report 2014

Accelerated for offsetting
tax against future
depreciation taxable profits Total
LGRS iy S
T 28 B8 M R B ik
i T8 2 s 4 Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T T BT
At 1 April 2012 W oFE—TAEMNH—H (791) 3,752 2,961
Deferred tax credited/ AR BB ENFTA
(charged) to the statement (F0 B ) Z 38 B IH
of profit or loss (Kt#10)
during the year (note 10) 27 (2,988) (2,961)
At 31 March 2013 and REoF—-=#=H=+—H
1 April 2013 K_F—=FNMH—H (764) 764 =
Deferred tax credited/ AR RBENFTA S
(charged) to the statement (R Z B EBEIH
of profit or loss during (B i#E10)
the year (note 10) 142 (142) -
At 31 March 2014 BoE-NE=ZH=+—H (622) 622 -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$176,630,000 (2013:
HK$163,099,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$167,874,000
(2013: HK$155,742,000) as, in the opinion of the directors, it
is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$18,774,000 (2013: HK$10,583,000) that will expire in five
years for offsetting against future taxable profit. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in a subsidiary with uncertain future operating profit

streams.

PR BIR - AREEG B W E A ZBEE R
#1176,630,000% JC (=& — =4 : 163,099,000
W 6) WA R R R S BLE 2 A
Z0f% 2R E SR B %R A o A B A0167,874,000% T
(=B —=4F £ 155,742,000% 70 ) Z BiJE & 48 3
JUE T R 2 MR AL R JE B > T R E R R R
THE R R 5 2 400 W AR R G i ) T 3L K A5
G 1E -

A 4 [ 5 A o 1Bk e E A B i 4H 18,774,000
Wt (ZF — =4F £ 10,583,000% 70) > W% R
FAE B > LIRS H R RSB A o H
B8 E e 4R 2 I — [ AR 2k 468 48 ¥ AR 3 S 1 B
Z B 2 1 o SR A A O T 0 A A I E o
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2013: Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s

subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by the
subsidiary established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2014, no deferred income tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of a subsidiary
and associates established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that the subsidiary and these
associates will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The share of the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in the subsidiary and these associates
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$17,459,000 at
31 March 2014 (2013: HK$13,509,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

25 B B (78)

TR SR > WO A TR A 5% R Y D A ) 2 R
R A 2 B T ) 5 R R AR e 2 AiE
HAMB(ZF =4 8) -

R4 v B A S BT A9 B3k > 7 o B K B o Z A
P B A SEAE ) A B B E IR R, > W 1%
10% 2 B R B BL - A B BLE 7 —FFN
FoHHRAER WERAR _-FFLHE T2
HE+—HRZEF o it v B ok b S % 4
B 3 P e ) s D T L BT AR BT DL
K TN BE AR B = BRACSR M & > 7 B R Ay
5% o PRI > ACHRE B R0 H K Bl o 2 PR Je
AT ZRRNE—H— HBZEHW S IRZ
JBe S B304 B4 B o

WF—WE=H=+—H » I %75 b 5
P M B S 2z B B 2 ) BRI 8 A ) R 8 AR T
Bt 2 oA RE &R BT IR 45 7 0 B i R R I P 45
Bl o BHER L » WE A F) B S A w5 AR
& A2 W] AR IRE BB o T — AR
EAZ+1—H > BEAG R E A w B S
KEEB B AR BRETHZ 2 REFA L
#117,459,000% ¢ (= F — =4 : 13,509,000%
JL) °

A FIIRE e T I 2 o 3 3 B
m

o
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

26. A

Annual Report 2014

Shares e By
2014 2013
e S 11 Ei S ZE =4
HK$°000 HKS$°000
BT o BT
Authorised: (note (i)) Wi (MREG))
400,000,000 ordinary shares 400,000,000/8 % /i T 0. 10%5 70
of HK$0.10 each (note (ii)) Z W 9 B (D)) - 40,000
Issued and fully paid: CEITRMR -
259,586,000 ordinary shares 259,586,000 /% ¥ 78 i 117,095 25,959
Notes: M7k

(i) Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which
commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised

share capital no longer exists.

(ii) In accordance with Section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no longer have a par
or nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014. There is no impact
on the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of
the members as a result of this transition.

A summary of the transactions during the year in the Company’s

issued share capital is as follows:

() RUBE VS A MO (H6228) >y =B —4E
SHEHE > R Z AR R -

(i) MR A AR (B622%) 1350 » KA H

U A S LR AT A B
At N 08 A o 5

JBe iy i =2 —PUAE = H = HOR A & A A -

Sl AT AT 2 R 2 A B e

FENARAF CETRAZZ HBMENT

Number of Share Capital
shares Issued premium  redemption
in issue capital account reserve Total
R £F) R £7) BB A i Il
Bty ¥ H JBE AR e U it i At
’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH T#7 T#7 T# T#
At 1 April 2012, REF—ZFENH—H -
31 March 2013 —R-EEE]
and 1 April 2013 Et-HERZF =4
WHa—H 259,586 25,959 90,557 579 117,095
Transfer to issued capital R B BT R - 91,136 (90,557) (579) -
At 31 March 2014 Ro-F—-NE=ZA=+—H 259,586 117,095 - - 117,095

Pursuant to the transitional provisions for the abolition of the
nominal value of share capital included in the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which became effective on
3 March 2014, the balances of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve as at 3 March 2014 have been
transferred to issued capital.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 27 to the financial statements.

WIER —F—WEZA=ZHARZHFEEBAF
Wbl (5R622%) £ 45 Z 5% Bk Ji A Thi i - 8 9
T R R—WEZH=H - RO R EIR K&
JBe A S [ ok A8 2 &5 % BB B CBATIROA o

ik B Hi

AR ) 2 B P R 8 I SO B 2 o B 27 o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees
of the Company, and any executive director or employee of any
of the Company’s subsidiaries and any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest.

On 28 August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) to replace the share option scheme which was
commenced on 17 September 2002 and was terminated on 28
August 2012 (the “Terminated Scheme”). The Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of 10 years up to 27 August 2022,
after which no further share options will be granted but the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects. Share options complying with the provisions
of the Listing Rules which are granted during the duration of
the Scheme and those remain unexercised immediately prior to
the end of the 10-year period shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of grant as within the share option
period for which such share options are granted, notwithstanding
the expiry of the Scheme.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 25,958,600 ordinary shares,
being 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on 28 August
2012. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 25,958,600 ordinary
shares, representing 10% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding an independent non-executive director who
is a grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

27. Jilk JBe B it #

A5 V) A i PR T sl R O S A% e S A 4R
MEBEEGAERAMZGER 2 ME - 5
ZHEKZMEBIHARNF ZEF (BT
FEBATES) ~ H AR B KA A T A R R
AR B A ] T 0 A 2 T AT S
&5 o

W4 NAZ+/)\H > KAFHRM—IH
JiE B RE R A (TRTE1) » DRI —F R ZF N
ATt HRBER - N\NA /B
IE 2 S e st (M ab5EE ) - 52 A 2800
B0 > 22F - "HF#)NAZ+LHAEIE
TG AN 6 P45 th A o i PR M > L5 ) 2 bRk AE
Fi A H AT AR E R B - B R A L
TR T > WA #E 10K NZH >
B A 5 0 9 Je i T A7 AR AT A 2 I I R > 75 e
7% G B WE 952 HH IR 2 A AR AT 08 > IR 32 T 0 40
Wz .

B Al AR B8 5 0 2 4 H Z 0 R AT 00 R
B T BOH %525,958,600/8 % 58 B » M A A
WEZF—ZHFNHZTNHOBITRMHZ
10% o A 288 0 > AR5 i ol gL 217
2 Ay 8B 525,958,600 1 38 I o K 4 AR
AT B EBTIRG 210% o 76T+ =6 3
AN MBS TSR NZEEAEKS R
BT Z B B B B R AR 2 B AR AR AT
R 2 BB AT R 2 1% o R — 53 i d
Ik R 2 P R > B2 A BB SRR B L AR B SR
o o

BYARNFER - FERR R E Z AT B
AN Z S SRR > JE S S USRS 2 R S SR AT
o Ao o 0 452 7 e e - 8 o7 JE AT
HHRAGHAN) o o > AR+ 0 A
A2 P A A Tl 2 B R s n JE AT
o B 2 AT T N e 2 A i i
A T AT I ) 2 B AT B =2.0.19% S Ho 48
A ($%3% PR % 2 JBe o i i B ) 0
HE SR  IZEF AR R R & LS B
FALHE o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer, upon receipt of the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
grantee with the number of shares in respect of which the offer
is accepted clearly stated therein, together with payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee to the Company
provided that no offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the Scheme or after the Scheme has been terminated.
The terms and conditions of the share options granted are
determinable by the directors on a case-by-case basis. Such
terms and conditions may include, but are not limited to (i) the
subscription price; (ii) the period within which the Company’s
shares must be taken up under the share option, which must not
be more than 10 years from the offer date; (iii) the minimum
period, if any, for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised; and (iv) the performance target, if any, that must be

achieved before the share option can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors in their absolute discretion at the time of the making of
the offer which shall be stated in the letter containing the offer,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the offer date which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value

of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or

to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, no share option (2013: Nil) was granted to the
directors and other employees of the Company or employees of
any of the Company’s subsidiaries and any entities in which the

Group holds any equity interests.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share
options outstanding under the the Scheme (2013: Nil).

Annual Report 2014

27. Vil JBe b it (4

52 ) i P - s vl R A D T R s
RHE )\ H WBERA > AR R B R
L35 PR L D B o o8 M A o L rp R
WY B A R B 2 W H > R A Sk 1 e Z AU
Tov ] o S TR S R o A S B AE B
B g i A Ik H AR B AN o PR Z R B RE
Wk B A v 3 o 4 DL TR E > A B R
B A A 4455 EL S BROP (i) M Ay 46T 5 (i) B e
ZATHEIYT > J9T B A E R 7 i e M2 Y U
104 5 (i) J JBC M S5 o 2L 6 A4 W AT 0 (A
A7) 5 FeGiv)#R B H B » 2 BL35 A AT B JBEHE i
HEEZRBAE (W) -

Sl B2 R 2 A A6 o 2 T DR o A R Y R R
TP 452 Hh D B e i W > MES SR DL R R
T B (AR 2 W) e 7 e 452 1 D e b (R
B8 T H ) A2 22 i 4 H R A P e i 8 5
(i) A 2 R e A 1 3% 422452 Hh i e st i A9 T
1632 5 H 72156 22 Pt 4 H 0 M50 36 BT v 1 35 i
67 (DAJG 22 i H 38 T i3 2 ) 5 ReGip AR &
Al By Z T AE o

Ji PR NI 4 M T A N WO S8 S M R K
ERFZHT -

N BEEESZ B (R — =4 ) TAR
O ) o A A E A A AT ] R A W K
AEE AR HEZEE -

TR IR > AR R IR 3 48 R AT B
SRR (=4 ) o
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28. RESERVES 28. fifi i
(a) Group (a) M
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AR AR B AR AR 9 BB AL AR BE 2 A L A2 )
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the M BREBIOHZ G AR EHRNE
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 46 of 1) o
the financial statements.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Foreign WMBA R FEIERENEA AR > B
Investment Enterprises, a portion of the profits of the 74 4 [ % H B K B DA A0 T 4 A 2 T AR
Group’s associates operating as Foreign Investment B2 W o E) AR R WY P ) 18 4 e A 2
Enterprises in Mainland China has been transferred to the A AT 2 AR o Y T — A
share of other reserves of associates. As at 31 March 2014, =HA=+—H > B8 A w2 H Al
the share of other reserves of associates of HK$2,227,000 %52,227,0009% 76 (ZF — =4F : 2,137,000
(2013: HK$2,137,000) is non-distributable in nature and can WIT) o B A Ao R A Al A 4 o T R AR
be utilised to offset the losses incurred. e E A Z 1R -
(b) Company b) A
Share Capital
premium redemption Retained
account reserve profits Total
A Sl
B Ak e Wi AR Bt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BYTT  BETT  BETT  EWTL
At 1 April 2012 W _F—-_FMH—H 90,557 579 50,571 141,707
Total comprehensive income  AS4E Ji 44 2 ij UK 25
for the year - - 1 1
At 31 March 2013 REF—=Z#=A=+—H
and 1 April 2013 F_ZF—=FNH—H 90,557 579 50,572 141,708
Total comprehensive loss AR AT FE 44 2 Vi e 18
for the year - = (4,728) (4,728)
Transfer to issued capital o O RAT IR AR (90,557) (579) = (91,136)
At 31 March 2014 BREF-NEZH=1+—H - - 45,844 45,844
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29.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the current year, the Group recognised the estimated
obligations, included in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, of HK$287,000 (2013: HK$706,000) to dismantle,
remove, restore certain items of property, plant and equipment
in respect of the office premises and retail stores under operating
leases.

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Annual Report 2014

29. &34 B4 it 1 Mk

FEHRERERY

AEEREN > AREE AT - B BEELE
HERAZRFEEMZETHE  BE &
W18 e B R R AN B AR287,0008 8 (B —=
4E £ 706,000 50) > W EFFAAREEZWE -
W M B A e

30

o 28 4

T IR o AR T A Ak o A A 2 R
KREHEWT

Company
2l
2014 2013
W S
HK$’000 HK$°000
T BT T
Guarantees given to banks 1) $RAT 4 Of B 2
in connection with facilities ZHRITER
granted to subsidiaries 366,400 401,400

As at 31 March 2014, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$147,841,000 (2013: HK$183,786,000).

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms of termination by one month’s written notice.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating

R 4E=ZH=+—H » KA A [RITHE
R E AR ZMITEE s ROBHHZEHA S
147,841,000 70 (= &F — =4 : 183,786,000%
JG) o

. BB ML K
(a) fERBAA

AR I A A IR LR A TS T b R
T oo REBETH Z AHLAYE DA — 8 7 EE T
LS -

TR IR > AR 8 AR B R AR A T R B 2
AR L AR T 7S T ) 350 R e - o I L 45 40

leases falling due as follows: BWWE
Group
£ |
2014 2013
— g —z =
HK$°000 HKS$’000
W T T BT T
Within one year —4E R 25 25
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. BEBMA L (H)
(continued)

The Group leases certain land and buildings under operating
lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for terms of one

year to eleven years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases falling due as follows:

(b) As lessee () feA#HEA

A AR I A A IR A B T b e
T o MBI AAFER A —FEL 4 -

TR IR > AR AR R AR A T R B 2
AR AR T 7S T 1) 390 R B A -2 g I L 4 40
BWAE

Group
e

2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T W T T
Within one year —4E N 4,246 5,357
In the second to fifth years BAERREHEN 14,254 22,648
After five years FLFER 16,062 19,827
34,562 47,832

The operating lease rentals of certain retail shops are based
on the contingent rent calculated on the sales of the retail
shops pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the
respective rental agreements. As the future sales of these
retail shops could not be estimated reliably, the relevant

contingent rent has not been included above and only the

AT REEHLEMEMST) DA
Ay HERE o SR A 4 H) DA B AL fh i P G
Rk B Aok A 3% % 55 22 45 I il 8 45 LR
REOLRERE o B % S5 2 0 il R 2R
;T SE LA T > WA B SR SR A
A b3 s 1 da (A B AL B R i s A b

minimum lease commitment has been included in the above o

table.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have AR R > A A 7] 36 AL 52 R W R0 Ay AR A R
any future minimum lease receivables or payments under non- RIE WA R AR BEEAH S H A FH (R —=

cancellable operating leases (2013: Nil). JE) o

PN
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32. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
31(b) above and elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following commitments at the end of the reporting

Annual Report 2014

32. 75

B b TR 5E31(b) BT At 4888 L 65 R 3 DA % i 56 1
ot At b iy P At 5 A o AR 4R T i 45 )
KA T H &Y

period:
Group
L]

2014 2013
e Sk 2 “E =4
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T T BT T

Contracted, but not provided for: CET A H R 35 4 -
Leasehold improvements HEY RS - 805

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant commitment (2013: Nil).

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with its

TR IR A F] I R R (=
g IE) o

BEHEALRS
(a) 4E > AN E BB E N\ 5T A E K

related parties during the year: 5
2014 2013
% psE =g
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Mt BT T
Rental income received from Iv1) B 7B 2 ) W R 4
related companies WA 1) 192 192
Rental income received from Tha) B 2 ) AR 4
associates WA (1) 332 332
Sales of goods to associates ) 2 A w] B R (ii) 224 119
Purchases of goods from Ih T 8 A ) R
associates (ii1) 4,464 3,113
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)
Notes:

(b)

(©)

(i) Tenancy agreements were entered into with related parties
and associates on mutually agreed terms. The leases can be
extended and renewed until terminated by either party.

(i) The sales of goods to associates were made by reference
to prices and conditions similar to those offered to other

customers.

(iii) The purchases from the associates were determined by
reference to prices and conditions similar to those offered by
the associates to their major customers.

The above related party transactions referred to in note (iii)
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with associates at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 15 to the financial

statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

33BN LR 5 ()

(a) ()

() LB Ton 7 R ) B M A R $ A E
e E 2R ET O o LAY AT AER R A
BT —T5 T UL

(i) 1T O B B R TG 2% [ A P
it 2 0L A T A A T S

(iii) 1 Wi O TSR T 2 5 1B 4 0 ) 1 L R B
& P Bk 2 UL M B Rk T R E o

b e B G B 2t 2z B N AR B i R
BB G (% BRI 4AZ TR TP 2
EF) o

(b) EHLBHE AN+ W AR
P RIR > BB A R Z SRR 0 R
A A B RS -

(c) ASEEEZH AR ZHM :

2014 2013

e Sk 2 R =

HK$’000 HKS$’000

T T BT

Short term employee benefits w1 B A 6,006 6,233

Pension scheme contributions fER Y o P 5 267 282
Total compensation paid to EACER X2 YN EA )

key management personnel Z I 4 A 6,273 6,515

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note

8 to the financial statements.

I 4 25 R OR h M
8 o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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MEBTHZAE

RHEAEBIR > #ABER TR ZIREENT

2014 Group
e Sl E S £ |
Financial assets
S A
Loans and
receivables
£k B M ok
HK$’000
YT
Trade receivables JRE W B 5 MR Ak 14,442
Financial assets included in AEE R TEAT R ~ W&
prepayments, deposits and P& RN T
other receivables (note 19) Z AR B (M FE19) 4,243
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K Bl & S IE H 42,332
61,017
2014 Group
e Sl E S £ |
Financial liabilities
4 114
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
35 8 95 AR N HIR vy 4 vl £1 %
HK$’000
BT
Due to an associate JRE A B 28 28 ] 254
Trade and bills payables JRE A B 5 R ok e 5 13,797
Financial liabilities included A 5 77 At B ARk MR 2k e
in other payables and accruals JE St £ 2 4 AL AR
(note 23) (Mt t23) 7,535
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AR B Z SRAT B 147,841
169,427
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34. & T H2Z 5 8 (5)
CATEGORY (continued)
2013 Group
it S £
Financial assets
4 Y
Fair value through
profit or loss — Loans and
Held for trading receivables Total
FrfEE B — %A FE Bk Kk
7R 4R AR JRE Wk HEt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade receivables HE W B 5 ik - 22,377 22,377
Financial assets included in AHE PR TEAT R ~ 5T
prepayments, deposits and T Al 1 W R ik 2
other receivables (note 19) S mE R (M aE19) - 5,590 5,590
Financial assets at fair value WA BB ERS AR
through profit or loss Z AR B 178 = 178
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R B4 S HE H = 65,884 65,884
178 93,851 94,029
2013 Group
it S E L
Financial liabilities
2k £
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
22 4 89 B A N\ SR 1 < i 1 £
HK$’000
BT T
Due to an associate JRE A Wi 7 24 ] 181
Trade and bills payables AT B 5 IR & 5 28,904
Financial liabilities included AL 355 7 JC Al JE A MR 3k
in other payables and KIEFIEEZ
accruals (note 23) MR AR (B it23) 9,541
Interest-bearing bank borrowings R BT R B Z SR AT K 183,786
222,412
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34. W T H2Z 58 (4)
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial assets
4 kY
Company
V|
2014 2013
e Sk 2 R =
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
£k K Fak &
JE e sk R Wk
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT T
Due from subsidiaries JFE WA it )8 2 ) 12,391 468
Financial assets included in BIGRFARIE - 5T 4
prepayments, deposits and T L At JE WA B R 2
other receivables (note 19) SRl B (MFE19) 3 3
Cash and bank balances Bl R BRAT 551+ 172 3,155
12,566 3,626
Financial liabilities
£t NER L
Company
s
2014 2013
S .
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
U AT A MR B AR A MR
1Y 4 il £1 4 Y 4 £ £
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
YT BT T
Due to subsidiaries JRE Ak K JBg 2 W 3,000 31,108
Financial liabilities included 2 95 At JE A B 5k
in other payables and KEG R
accruals (note 23) e EAR (B it23) 3,446 3,450
6,446 34,558
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

Group

Carrying amounts

31 March 2014 —2-mE¥=A=+—H

35. AP K A TR 2 A PR

ACER I T A 4 ] A il T 2 R T R P
T
£

Fair values

e v L AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
e Sl E S —F =4 —F—WiE —E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT T
Financial assets Y gA
Financial assets at fair value A PHZE BB RS
through profit or loss AR Z &g E - 178 - 178

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due from/to subsidiaries and an amount due to an
associate approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were

used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

HHE O R - BlE RBIEFMEH - BRH
Rk~ BEAT B 2 ek B SRR~ B FELAE K
TE ~ T 4 B At B W HR AR 4 il O E - B AR
Al B A R ok B M it BB 2 i A - MR
5F FbF S 2 W) i I DA B HE AN I 7 A R Z AR I Z
AP BRI R B > EEBRZET
LA A1 P B o

it A R BRI AP DL T H B 5 5

(58 78 R 75 M ) 5 R A ) Wi 22 50 T W AT 22 5 4
BN o T FIT5 8 B AR TS UAG w4 P AE

TR B B AN P AR BT T R R A
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35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value. As at 31 March 2013, the
Group had equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$178,000 with fair value measurement using quoted prices
in active markets (Level 1).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2013: Nil).

The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-

bearing bank borrowings, cash and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and short term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group’s funding policy uses short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements. The Group borrows
mainly at floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in Hong Kong dollar and RMB interest rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss)
before tax (through the impact on cash and cash equivalents and
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity. There is no
impact on the Company’s equity.

36
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BT

REF-WE=ZH=1—H o RGN ERSA
EMUAFEF R EMEERAMR R
—ZEZAZF 0 AEERRAFEER
28 AR 2 HE 25 3 % 178,000 7C » HAFE R
B0 B A (5 ) -

TRACAEBE > 58— g B 5 g =[] 3 0 2 <P
w2 g 1 D DA M 4 R S 4 b B
T2 56 = i A S 2 (=
4 fE) o

REF-NE=H=+—HERZF-=4=A
Zh B ACHE S R A AT T DA AP R
ZEMEE &AL -

S 75 B8 4% B H AR B SR

AR 2 B A TR AR A R B Z AT
Bk Bl KRR » EEEMTRZ
FEMBTIMAREZ BERE - REMBER
JRE W S Bk e R A B 5 Mk B S R S 4 T L
i G b A M BUMR > Ty LA AR -

PRI A 4 T - < i T L T A 2 o R o s A R
JE K~ A B~ R BB~ B B %
IR M A% L I o B o A K IR R B S
S B B e o BOR MR A

% e B

7 5 [ 76 7 4f i 0 ) R A 2 o B B B AR AR
B e B ST H SRR B R R B 2
WEB AR -

A 2 ¥ 4 TSR TS B 22 B
BB LR 2 T 5 o A4 2 3 42 B
A -

TRBFIALE W Z BRBLRTRA 7 O 1H) KA
45 P Bl 2 3 W 0 N R AR 2 5 B AT RS2 )
(B A St TR 3% A 1 A 5 ) Z UK R (BB Bl &
Fe B4 S H I H BLE B AE KL B o 3R
It S A 4 ] 2 e N B 5 2 o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. S 5 Ml g 45 P H R B SR (7))
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) ) 2 B ()
Group
HEM
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
-3 B Be 1 i A B A
Bim, (W) B, (W4) Bim, (W4)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
2014 e Sk 2
Hong Kong dollar W 50 (555) -
Renminbi AR 50 25 =
Hong Kong dollar Wt (50) 555 -
Renminbi NG (50) (25) =
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
B2 e 5 W s 4 i ET
¥, (W) WA () B, (W)
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Vi o BT or
2013 e Sy S
Hong Kong dollar W 50 (634) -
Renminbi NG 50 44 =
Hong Kong dollar Wt (50) 634 -
Renminbi NG (50) (44) -

*

Excluding retained profits

o AR B A
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or expenses of operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The Group’s monetary
assets, financing and transactions were principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollar and RMB. The Group is exposed to the
foreign exchange risk arising from changes in the exchange rate
of the Hong Kong dollar against RMB. At present, the Group
does not intend to seek to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its foreign exchange risk profile, and
will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as may be

necessary.

Since the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar,
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the
bank balances and trade and bills payables denominated in United

States dollars is considered to be minimal.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due
to the changes in the fair value of forward currency contracts).

There is no impact on the Company’s equity.
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A IE B B8

7 S [0 i 2 22 B W o % S LB S TR
A8 BLA DL % B A 2 T e B M DA A 2 B OB AT
HR S A o A B - B &
B8 5y FZEVL e o0 B N\ RS A2 L o A4 [ i 2 9
70 5o N B I R A ) 2 A B L o H R > ARAR
VB0 A 458 9 O A S 2 b BEE 5 B R b o AR
7K 55 I 5t R A At AU B 5T B L A e Ja e AR
YU o> A B0 5 G G O

H A 8 0 S 58 0 b 8 > PRI > AR A B DL SR
T B Z SRAT A i S ME A B 5 MRk B S 4 2 b
T R e A 8 2 de /1

T A HR F N R E R BT REAE B > A
A S8 MR AR A S B DU T o S AC AR R
SR F Ik B R O 4RY) (B I 55 W I
B AP E) ) KA BIAE LR (HR ) &
WS B A B 2 1 {5 5 ) B B0) Z UK R S A - A
I It 3 A A ) 2 B i N 0 Y B o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

36. S 85 e B 4% BEL H B B BOR (4)

(continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) A B JEL B ()
Group
£
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
-3 1 B Be 1 i A B A
Bim, (W) B, (W) Bim, (W4)
HK$’000 HK$’000
W o 8 o
2014 e Sk 2
If Hong Kong dollar weakens e TN Lk
against RMB (50) 270 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens 25 W0 S N R 5 3
against RMB 50 (270) -
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
5L B Bt i M 48 HE 25 %
B, ) WA, (K m) B, (i)
HK$’000 HK$°000
Vel BT
2013 —F =
If Hong Kong dollar weakens T S\ R 55
against RMB (50) (807) -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens #5050 R iR 24
against RMB 50 807 -

& Excluding retained profits

B R B A
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company
is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 30 to the

financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are

widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed

in notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade

receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-

bearing bank borrowings.
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ARGEEEREAZREETEZIEPETR
Sy o ¥R WACSE M Z BOR > P A IR R DELT
RAHMEF > BALEBERZERT - I
B > A AR R A A M A R A UL o T AR AR
P - R e 3 A K o

A £ [ 0 45 B4 I B 4 A TE H B Al M Wk
TH 2 FC Al B 5 2 A B R B DR 8 B T R A -
T R R B AH 45 5% 45 T H 2 MR M o AR ] [
52 H 4 i 0fS PR T 7R 32 45 B R BR 5 — 2B SR R
WA 7 4 B Rk 30 B 8 o

FH A A 5% P {28 S 28 T Sife £ 8 T S 1 % P R AT
B 5y o WO T BATATHEHT o KA B B4R
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o WOA B ] P Ol B0 R OK A B4R P LR

A A [ Y W R B R R At M R TH 2 A
B R\ B Z 5 A R 4 ) B 2 R B A R A B RE 18
%19
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ACHE [ ) BB AE A 2 4 R A A B 2 BT
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial

liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

36. S 85 e B 4% BEL H B B BOR (4)

i h e 4 B ()

38 CLRT Z0 R B BLIRK > DLF S5 A 4R B Je AR
AFRREH R Z A EEIH A

Group £ M
Within 1 year
2014 2013
L —g =
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Due to an associate JRE A T 5 2 W] 254 181
Trade and bills payables JEAT B 55 MR Ak e SR i 13,797 28,904
Other payables At JE A5 R R 7,535 9,541
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BRI B Z SR AT B 148,587 184,722
170,173 223,348
Company A
On demand or
within 1 year
K — AW
2014 2013
e L ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT
Due to subsidiaries JRE Ak Bhk Ja§ 2 w1 3,000 31,108
Financial liabilities included in A 955 77 3L At FE A Rk %
other payables and accruals JE St AR 2 4 A 3,446 3,450
Guarantees given to banks in T FhY B A ) B 4% 5 BT
connection with facilities i SR AT AR tH 2 9 AR
granted to subsidiaries 147,841 183,786
154,287 218,344
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the values of individual securities. The Group was
exposed to equity price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 20) as at 31 March 2013. The Group’s listed
investments were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
were valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting

period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 3%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on

their carrying amounts as at 31 March 2013.
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JBe 53¢ R R Bt

i 5% AU v R itk it PR Je R i K T A il i 2%
B 6 A B8 ) B8OHE 2 8 2 O T L R IR 2 JE i o
HER-ZFEEZAEH o REERZHE
B B A A BB AR 2 A P B i AR 2 A
MR F) < 1 (M E20) T 5| BBOBCHE (TS LB
ARSI Z BT A A W A B bl i LA
i T o TR Z 0 o

T 2 BRI 7 A B PR R R A I BLR B E
HE - MERRER R -=ZF=H=1+—H
ZIRTEAE > BHRERS G A PR3 % B) 2 UK
‘lé ®

Group £
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
fair value before tax in equity*
A fE W e i B 25
¥, feH A B,
(W) (3% ) (W)
% HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Investments listed in Hong Kong s bl E
— Held for trading - FEERE 3 5 -
(3) (%) -

& Excluding retained profits

o AR A
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is required to comply with certain
externally imposed capital requirements set out in certain of its

banking facility letters.

As at 31 March 2014, there was no indication of breach of
covenants and the Group complied with the externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company. The gearing ratio is regularly
reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end

of the reporting periods were as follows:
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¥R

ACHR [ B ACAE B R R Tl DR AC AR A
0 5 AR S 2 D ) O T A e A R A
Pl 3R DL S 7 L3 3 B RAU R OR B L -

74 5% I L 8 AR AU 1 2 A T A B A A I
T DA B o T A B B A G > AR I T
A PR R 2 RS ~ 1 e SRR [ A B B AT
JBe o ACHR A 6 Fo T SRAT B D oK T IR
Z B T A IR 2 B ACER o

REB-MESAS+—H > BRERSZ
BB > 1A S T A AR 2 AR SR o
BRE-Z -NESA=+ AR % =£=
A=A kRN > G I B - B
TR St B S )

AR B R E A R DB AR > MR
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37. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 29 May 2014, the Group entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose of
certain of its land and buildings situated in Hong Kong for a cash
consideration of HK$8,000,000. This transaction is scheduled to
be completed on or before 30 June 2014 and is expected to result
in a gain on disposal before tax of approximately HK$5,373,000.

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 27 June 2014.
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